PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC Form DEF 14A March 18, 2010 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934

(Amendment No. _)

Filed by the Registrant x Filed by a Party other than the Registrant "

Check the appropriate box:

- " Preliminary Proxy Statement
- " Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- x Definitive Proxy Statement
- " Definitive Additional Materials
- " Soliciting Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12

The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc.

(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check the appropriate box):

- x No fee required.
- Fee computed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(4) and 0-11.
 - (1) Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (2) Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:
 - (3) Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):
 - (4) Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:

(5) Total fee paid:

- " Fee paid previously with preliminary materials.
- " Check box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing for which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or the Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.
 - (1) Amount Previously Paid:
 - (2) Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:
 - (3) Filing Party:
 - (4) Date Filed:

James E. Rohr

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

March 18, 2010

Dear Shareholder:

We invite you to attend PNC s 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders on Tuesday, April 27, 2010. The meeting will be held in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania on the 15th Floor of One PNC Plaza, 249 Fifth Avenue, beginning at 11:00 a.m., Eastern time. We will consider the matters described in this proxy statement and also review significant developments since last year s meeting of shareholders.

We are again making our proxy materials available to you on the Internet. We hope this offers you convenience while we reduce the number of printed copies. The proxy statement contains important information and you should read it carefully.

Even if you plan to attend the meeting in person, we strongly encourage you to designate the proxies named on the proxy card to vote your shares. If you will not be here in person, you will be able to hear the meeting by teleconference or webcast. Please see the notice that follows for more information.

We look forward to your participation and thank you for your support of PNC.

Cordially,

James E. Rohr

The PNC Financial Services Group

One PNC Plaza 249 Fifth Avenue Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15222-2707

The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc.

249 Fifth Avenue

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222-2707

2010 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS QUICK REFERENCE GUIDE

DATE AND TIME	Tuesday, April 27, 2010, 11:00 a.m., Eastern time		
PLACE 249 Fifth Avenue 1 ^t 5 Floor	The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc.		
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222			
WEBCAST AND TELECONFERENCE INSTRUCTIONS	Webcast: www.pnc.com/investorevents		
	Conference Call:	800-990-2718 706-643-0187 (international) Conference ID 60954730	
Information included on our website, other than our Proxy Statement and form of proxy, is not a part of the proxy soliciting material.			
ITEMS OF BUSINESS	Elect as directors the 17 nominees named in the proxy statement		
	Ratify the appointment of our external auditing firm for 2010		
	Approve an advisory vote on executive compensation (say on pay)		
	Consider shareholder proposals properly introduced at the meeting		
	Other business		
RECORD DATE	February 12, 2010		

HOW TO VOTE

If you hold shares in your own name, you can vote over the Internet or by telephone, or you can fill out a proxy card and return it to us.

If you hold shares through a broker or bank, that institution will provide proxy materials to you, and explain how to vote. Please contact your broker or bank if you have not received these materials or are unsure about how to vote.

PROXY MATERIALS	We make these proxy materials available over the Internet. If you received a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, you can request printed copies of the proxy materials. The notice explains how to do that.
ANNUAL REPORT (10-K)	We have also furnished our Chairman s Letter and the 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K to our shareholders. Like the proxy statement, we have made these documents available over the Internet. They are not part of the proxy soliciting materials.

PLEASE VOTE YOUR SHARES

As a shareholder, your vote is important to us. Please make sure that you vote all of your shares. We offer two convenient ways to vote:

By Internet or telephone please see the instructions on the proxy card or Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials.

By mail complete, sign and date the proxy card and return it in the enclosed envelope.

DELIVERY OF PROXY MATERIALS

We use householding to reduce our printing and postage costs. Householding allows us to deliver one set of proxy materials to multiple shareholders at the same address.

If you have more than one shareholder at a single address, you may request additional materials. Please write or call Computershare Investor Services, our stock transfer agent.

Computershare Investor Services, LLC P.O. Box 43078 Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3078 800-982-7652

We will always mail a separate proxy card or Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials for each shareholder account, regardless of how many sets of proxy materials you receive. Our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K is not part of our proxy solicitation materials.

WEBCAST AND CONFERENCE CALL INSTRUCTIONS

We also provide a webcast and conference call for you to listen to the annual meeting.

Telephone 800-990-2718 and 706-643-0187 (international) Conference ID 60954730

Internet www.pnc.com/investorevents

You may view or print any slides used during the annual meeting. Please visit the website ahead of time to register and download any necessary software.

A replay of the meeting will be available for a limited time after the meeting. The telephone replay will be available for one week and the Internet replay will be available for thirty days.

Telephone 800-642-1687 and 706-645-9291 (international) Conference ID 60954730

Internet www.pnc.com/investorevents

March 18, 2010

Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders

April 27, 2010

To Our Shareholders:

The 2010 annual meeting of the shareholders of The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. will be held at One PNC Plaza, 15th Floor, 249 Fifth Avenue, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania on Tuesday, April 27, 2010, beginning at 11:00 a.m., Eastern time, for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following matters:

- (1) Electing as directors the 17 nominees named in the proxy statement that follows, to serve until the next annual meeting and until their successors are elected and qualified;
- (2) Ratifying the Audit Committee s selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as PNC s independent registered public accounting firm for 2010;
- (3) Approving an advisory vote on executive compensation;
- (4) Considering two shareholder proposals, if properly presented before the meeting; and
- (5) Such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Shareholders of record at the close of business on February 12, 2010 are entitled to receive notice of, and to vote at, the meeting and any adjournment.

We have taken advantage of Securities and Exchange Commission rules that permit us to deliver proxy materials electronically. For certain shareholders, we have not enclosed a proxy card. Instead, we mailed a notice explaining how to vote. For other shareholders, we mailed a paper copy of this proxy statement and proxy card.

Even if you plan to attend the annual meeting in person, we encourage you to cast your vote over the Internet, by telephone, or if you prefer, by requesting a paper proxy card to complete, sign, date and return by mail.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

George P. Long, III

Corporate Secretary

The PNC Financial Services Group

One PNC Plaza 249 Fifth Avenue Pittsburgh Pennsylvania 15222-2707

TABLE OF CONTENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION	1
Attending the Annual Meeting Reviewing Proxy Materials Voting Your Shares	1 2 2
How a Proposal Gets Approved	5
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT PNC	7
Our Corporate Governance Guidelines	7
Board Leadership Structure Communicating with Our Board	8 9
Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics	10
Board Committees	11
Audit Committee	11
Nominating and Governance Committee Personnel and Compensation Committee	12 15
Risk Committee	19
Board Meetings in 2009	20
Board Compensation in 2009	21
DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER RELATIONSHIPS	27
Director Independence	27
Transactions with Directors	31 33
Family Relationships Indemnification and Advancement of Costs	33 34
Related Person Transactions Policies and Procedures	34
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS	37
SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE	41
PROPOSALS REQUIRING YOUR VOTE	
ITEM 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	42
ITEM 2 RATIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE S SELECTION OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP	<u>AS THE</u>
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2010	57
Audit and Non-Audit Fees	57
Procedures for Pre-Approving Audit and Permitted Non-Audit Services	58
Report of the Audit Committee	59
ITEM 3 ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	61
ITEM 4 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL	62
ITEM 5 SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL	65

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION	68
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	68
Our Philosophy	68
Compensation Principles	68
The Impact of TARP on Compensation Decisions	69
Analysis of Compensation Decisions	72
Changes to the Executive Compensation Program	84
Peer Group Determination	86
Our Policies on Timing of Awards	87
Tax Considerations	88
Other Equity Ownership Policies	89
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT	91
COMPENSATION AND RISK	93
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES	97
Summary Compensation Table	99
Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2009	102
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal Year-End	105
Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2009	111
Pension Benefits at 2009 Fiscal Year-End	112
Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal 2009	115
CHANGE IN CONTROL AND TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT	117
Change in Control Benefits Under Equity-Based Grants	117
Change in Control Agreements	118
Potential Change in Control Payments	118
Benefits Upon Termination of Employment	119
REQUIREMENTS FOR DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS	121
Director Nominations, Proposals for Action, and Other Business Brought Before the Annual Meeting	121
Recommendations of Director Candidates From Shareholders	123
OTHER MATTERS	124

March 18, 2010

Proxy Statement

FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

GENERAL INFORMATION

PNC will hold the annual meeting of its shareholders on Tuesday, April 27, 2010. We provided access to our proxy materials beginning on Thursday, March 18, 2010.

This proxy statement includes information about PNC, describes the proposals to be considered at the meeting, and explains the voting process. We encourage you to read it carefully.

The first section of this proxy statement reviews important technical points, such as how to attend the meeting, how to access our proxy materials, how to vote, and how a proposal gets approved.

In this opening section, we sometimes discuss differences between registered and street name shareholders. For purposes of reviewing the proxy material and voting shares, this distinction is important. We refer to individuals owning PNC shares in their own name as registered holders. We refer to individuals who own PNC shares through an account at an intermediary such as a brokerage firm or bank as holding our shares in street name .

Attending the Annual Meeting

Our annual meeting of shareholders will begin at 11:00 a.m., Eastern time, on Tuesday, April 27, 2010. We will hold the meeting in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania on the 15th Floor of One PNC Plaza, our headquarters building. If you need directions, please contact our Investor Relations department at **investor.relations@pnc.com**.

We will have a meeting registration desk in the lobby of One PNC Plaza to assist shareholders attending in person.

If you are a registered holder, locate the admission ticket in the information you receive from us either the proxy card attachment or the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials and bring it with you to the meeting. The ticket will admit you and one other person.

If you hold PNC shares in street name, your individual name will not appear on our list of registered shareholders. To attend the meeting, please bring a recent account statement or a letter from your broker that shows the PNC shares that you own. You must present this documentation at the registration desk to attend the meeting.

Everyone attending the annual meeting agrees to abide by the rules for the conduct of the meeting. These rules will be printed on the meeting agenda and distributed or reviewed at the meeting.

If you cannot attend the annual meeting in person, you can still listen to the meeting by using the webcast or conference call options that are explained in the Quick Reference Guide at the beginning of this proxy statement.

Reviewing Proxy Materials

Mailing Date. We provided access to our proxy materials beginning on Thursday, March 18, 2010. On that day, we either mailed the Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, began mailing a paper copy of this proxy statement and proxy card to our shareholders, or delivered proxy materials electronically to shareholders who previously consented.

Accessing Proxy Materials. The SEC allows us to deliver proxy materials to shareholders over the Internet. We believe that this offers a more convenient way for shareholders to review our information. It also reduces printing expenses and lessens the environmental impact of paper copies.

Any shareholder may access our proxy materials electronically. Upon request, we will continue to provide paper copies of proxy materials to shareholders.

If you hold PNC shares in street name, we generally cannot mail our materials to you directly. Your broker or bank must provide you with the Notice of Internet Availability or copies of the proxy statement and card, and must also explain the voting process to you.

Have You Received More Than One Set of Proxy Materials? If two or more PNC shareholders live in your household, or you have more than one brokerage account, you may have received more than one set of our proxy materials. This may also happen if you maintain more than one shareholder account on the books of our transfer agent.

To reduce costs and improve efficiency, we make available a delivery method called householding. With your consent, we will only deliver one set of proxy materials to your address. Householding helps us to reduce duplicate packages and lower expenses.

Even if you choose householding, we will always deliver a separate proxy card or Notice of Internet Availability for each account. Householding will not affect your right to vote.

If householding interests you, please see *Delivery of Proxy Materials*, located just after the Quick Reference Guide. Our householding process does not include accounts that you maintain at a brokerage firm or bank. Some brokerage firms and banks now offer householding please contact your broker directly if you are interested.

Voting Your Shares

As the owners of PNC, we want our shareholders to consider the important matters before them and exercise their right to vote. Our Board of Directors is asking for, or soliciting, a proxy from our shareholders. This section describes the different aspects of the voting process and how proxy voting works.

Who Can Vote? You must be a shareholder of record as of February 12, 2010 to vote at the annual meeting.

What is a Proxy? We understand that not everyone can attend the annual meeting in person. If you are a shareholder, you can tell us exactly how you want to vote and then allow an officer to vote on your behalf. That is called giving us a proxy . By allowing a proxy to carry out your wishes, you can ensure that your vote counts.

Soliciting Your Proxy. Our Board of Directors is soliciting your proxy to make sure that your vote is properly submitted and received on time, and to improve the efficiency of the annual meeting. We may ask for, or solicit, proxies using several methods.

We may solicit proxies by mail, personal interviews, telephone or fax. We may use the Internet to solicit proxies. PNC officers or employees may solicit proxies, but will not receive any special compensation for doing so.

We will ask brokerage houses, banks and other custodians of PNC stock to forward proxy materials to their clients. We will pay for their expenses to do so.

We hired D.F. King & Co., Inc., a proxy soliciting firm, to help us with the solicitation of proxies for the 2010 annual meeting. We will pay D.F. King \$18,500, plus its out-of-pocket expenses, to provide information to our shareholders and to distribute proxy materials.

Revoking Your Proxy. What if you change your mind after you give us your proxy to vote? You can always amend your voting decisions until the polls close at the annual meeting. We call this revoking your proxy.

To revoke your current proxy and replace it with a new proxy, we must receive the newly executed proxy before the deadline. If you revoke by mail, or by using the telephone or Internet voting options, we must receive your revocation several hours before the annual meeting begins. If you choose to revoke by mail, please make sure you have provided enough time for the replacement proxy to reach us.

Once the annual meeting begins, you can only revoke your proxy in person. You cannot use the webcast or conference call to revoke your proxy. Once the polls close at the annual meeting, the right to revoke ends. If you have not properly revoked your proxy, we will vote your shares in accordance with your most recent valid proxy.

How to Vote. You may always vote in person by submitting a ballot at the annual meeting. We will distribute ballots at the meeting. To make it convenient and simple for you, we offer a number of other ways to vote your shares. We include voting instructions in the Notice of Internet Availability and the proxy card.

If you hold PNC shares in street name, you will receive information on how to give voting instructions to your brokerage firm or bank. For registered holders, we offer the following additional methods to vote your shares and give us your proxy:

Internet	Telephone	Mail	
Go to www.envisionreports.com/PNC	Follow the instructions on the proxy card or in the Notice of	Complete, sign and date the proxy card and return it in the envelope provided if	
and follow the instructions.	Internet Availability.	you requested or were sent copies of these proxy materials. The envelope requires no postage if mailed in the United States.	
This voting system has been designed to provide security for the voting process and to confirm that your vote has been recorded accurately. You may incur costs associated with			

recorded accurately. You may incur costs associated with

electronic access, such as usage charges from Internet service

providers and telephone companies.

PNC is incorporated in Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania law allows properly authenticated proxies to be transmitted by telephone or the Internet. Pennsylvania law also permits a beneficial owner, such as a brokerage firm or bank, to communicate a vote by telephone or Internet for a shareholder of record.

Brokers Voting Your Shares. If you hold PNC shares in street name, you must give instructions to your broker on how you would like your shares to be voted. If you do not provide any instructions, your broker can vote your shares on routine items. The NYSE declares an item to be either routine or non-routine .

Until this year, the election of directors was a routine item. The NYSE no longer considers this item routine, and you must provide specific instructions on director elections, if you want your vote to count.

A broker non-vote occurs when the shareholder provides no instructions and the item is non-routine. In determining whether a vote was cast for a proposal, we will not count broker non-votes.

Our Voting Recommendations. If you do not tell us how you want to vote your shares, and we are permitted to vote on your behalf, we will vote:

FOR each of the Board s 17 nominees for director.

FOR the ratification of the selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as PNC s independent registered public accounting firm for 2010.

FOR the advisory resolution on executive compensation.

AGAINST the shareholder proposals.

Confidential Voting. We keep votes confidential and do not disclose them to our directors, officers or employees, except:

As necessary to meet legal requirements or to pursue or defend legal actions.

To allow the Judge of Election to certify the voting results.

When a shareholder or benefit plan participant requests disclosure of the vote.

If there is a contested proxy solicitation.

Our Board has adopted a confidential voting policy. With the exceptions described above, this policy states that all proxies, ballots, voting instructions from employee benefit plan participants and voting tabulations that identify the particular vote of a shareholder or benefit plan participant be kept permanently confidential and not be disclosed.

Computershare Investor Services, LLC, our independent vote tabulator and Judge of Election for the 2010 annual meeting, confirmed that its procedures will be consistent with this policy.

How a Proposal Gets Approved

On the record date, we had over 500 million outstanding shares of common stock, as well as additional shares of preferred stock. To hold a proper meeting, we need a certain amount of our shares to be present, either in person or by proxy. This is known as reaching a quorum.

Once a quorum is achieved, different proposals may require different standards of approval. Street name holders may need to take additional precautions to ensure that their vote counts. We discuss the mechanics of proposal approval below.

Issued and Outstanding Shares. This table shows the number of issued and outstanding shares of our common and preferred stock on February 12, 2010, the record date. The table also shows the number of votes for each share for the matters brought before this meeting. The number of votes shown for each share of voting preferred stock equals the number of full shares of PNC common stock that can be acquired upon the conversion of a share of preferred stock. At the meeting, holders of common and preferred stock will vote together as a single class.

				Effective
		Shares Issued and		
	Class	Outstanding	Votes Per Share	Voting Power
Common		517,509,690	1	517,509,690
Preferred	Series A	6,233	8	49,864
Preferred	Series B	1,105	8	8,840
Preferred	Series C	118,108	4 for each 2.4 shares	196,847
Preferred	Series D	167,841	4 for each 2.4 shares	279,735
Preferred	Series K	50,000	0	0
Preferred	Series L	1,500	0	0

Quorum. Under Pennsylvania law, we must have a quorum before we can consider proposals at an annual meeting. A quorum is the number of shares that must be present at the meeting. In determining if a quorum exists, we count the number of shares represented by shareholders in person as well as the number of shares represented by proxies.

To have a quorum, we need the presence of shareholders or their proxies who are entitled to cast at least *a majority* of the votes that all shareholders are entitled to cast. Whether you vote for or against a proposal, or whether you abstain from voting, your holdings will be counted toward the quorum.

Votes Required for Approval. Under Pennsylvania law, if you abstain from voting, or fail to record a vote, it will not count as a vote cast. In other words, only those shareholders who indicate an affirmative or negative decision on a matter are treated as having voted. A broker non-vote will also be treated as a failure to record a vote and will not count as a vote cast.

Election of Directors (Item 1). Unless a company s articles of incorporation or by-laws provide otherwise, Pennsylvania law contemplates election of directors by a plurality of votes cast. In 2009, PNC amended its by-laws to include an eligibility requirement for director nominees in uncontested elections, whereby an incumbent director will offer to resign if he or she does not receive a majority of the votes cast. Our by-laws and corporate governance guidelines describe this majority voting requirement and the related procedure that requires an incumbent director to tender his or her resignation to the Board. To receive a majority of the votes cast means that the shares voted for a director s election exceeds 50% of the number of votes cast with respect to that director s election. As a non-routine item, there may be broker non-votes. Any broker non-votes or abstentions will not be included in the total votes cast, and will not affect the results.

Ratification of Auditors (Item 2). A majority of the votes cast will be required to approve this item, the ratification of our Audit Committee s selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2010. This will be considered a routine item, and brokers have the discretion to vote uninstructed shares on behalf of clients. As a routine item, there will be no broker non-votes, although brokers may otherwise fail to submit a vote. Any failures to vote or abstentions will not be included in the total votes cast, and will not affect the results.

Advisory Vote on Executive Compensation (Item 3). A majority of the votes cast will be required to approve this item, an advisory vote on executive compensation. This will be considered a routine item, and brokers have the discretion to vote uninstructed shares on behalf of clients. Any broker non-votes or abstentions will not be included in the total votes cast, and will not affect the results.

Shareholder Proposals (*Items 4 and 5*). Each of the shareholder proposals, if properly presented before the meeting, will be approved if a majority of the votes cast are voted in favor of the proposal. Any broker non-votes or abstentions will not be included in the total votes cast, and will not affect the results.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT PNC

In this section, we highlight some of our corporate governance policies and practices. We also discuss how shareholders can communicate with our Board.

Please visit the PNC website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**. The site includes additional information about our Board, its committees and corporate governance at PNC.

This proxy statement is also available at www.pnc.com/proxystatement.

To receive printed copies of these governance-related documents,

please send a request to:

Corporate Secretary

The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc.

One PNC Plaza 21 Floor

249 Fifth Avenue

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15222-2707

or

corporate.secretary@pnc.com

Board Committee Charters (Audit, Nominating and Governance,

Personnel and Compensation, Risk)

By-Laws

Categorical Standards of Independence

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We will provide any of these items at no cost, and we also make these items available on our website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**. These will be available for the 2010 meeting and we expect to make them available for future meetings. (We will update any contact information in a future filing and on our website.)

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines

Our Board has adopted Corporate Governance Guidelines to address important governance principles, including:

Director qualification standards

Director access to management and independent advisors

Director compensation

Director orientation and continuing education

Management succession

Annual Board performance evaluations

We post these corporate governance guidelines, which are annually reviewed by the Nominating and Governance Committee, at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**.

Board Leadership Structure

Based on an assessment of its current needs and the composition, skills, and qualifications of the directors, the Board believes that the appropriate leadership structure should include the following attributes:

a substantial majority of independent directors

a lead independent director with specific duties

regular executive sessions of all independent directors

The Board s current leadership structure includes all three attributes. We have not adopted a policy with respect to separating the Chairman and CEO positions. The Board believes that the leadership structure should be flexible enough to accommodate different approaches based on the relevant facts and circumstances. We evaluate the structure of the Board each year, and this evaluation includes an analysis of the leadership of the Board and its committees.

As we discuss in our corporate governance guidelines, the Personnel and Compensation Committee oversees any decision on the separation of the Chairman and CEO positions as part of the succession planning process. The Board believes that it is in the best interests of PNC for the Board to make this decision when it elects a new CEO.

James E. Rohr, our current CEO, also serves as the Chairman. The Board values Mr. Rohr s substantial experience at PNC, and his extensive industry knowledge and insights. Thomas J. Usher, the Board s Presiding Director, serves as our lead independent director. We describe his duties in more detail below. As stated in our corporate governance guidelines, our Presiding Director also serves as the Chairman of the Board s Nominating and Governance Committee.

Majority of Independent Directors. We have long maintained a Board with a substantial majority of directors who are not PNC employees. Our corporate governance guidelines require at least a majority of our directors to be independent from management, in accordance with NYSE listing standards.

As the Chairman and CEO of PNC, Mr. Rohr is currently the only director who is not independent under NYSE s bright-line rules. The Board has affirmed the independence of each of our other sixteen nominees for director, in accordance with the process described in *Director and Executive Officer Relationships* on pages 27-31.

Lead Independent Director. As the Presiding Director, Mr. Usher is the lead independent director for our Board. The Board s independent and non-management directors selected him for this role. The Board approved the following duties for the Presiding Director:

Preside at meetings of the Board of Directors in the event of the Chairman s unavailability.

Convene executive sessions of the Board s independent directors whenever he or she deems it appropriate to do so.

Preside at executive sessions of the Board s non-management and independent directors.

Confer with the Chairman immediately following the executive sessions of the Board s non-management and independent directors to convey the substance of the discussions held during those sessions, subject to any limitations specified by the independent directors.

Act as the principal liaison between the Chairman and the Board s independent directors on sensitive issues.

Be available for confidential discussions with any non-management or independent director who may have concerns which he or she believes have not been properly considered by the Board as a whole.

Advise the Chairman regarding the Board s meeting schedule, agendas, and information flows, in order to promote the efficiency and effectiveness of the Board s operation and decision making.

Participate with management in meetings with major shareholders if requested to do so by such shareholders or by management.

Be available to receive direct communications from shareholders through Board-approved procedures.

Discharge such other responsibilities as the Board s independent directors may assign from time to time.

In addition, the Presiding Director serves as the Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee. The Chairman of that committee leads the Board and Committee annual self-evaluation process and the evaluation of Board independence. That Committee also reviews, and the Chairman reports to the Board, significant developments in corporate governance.

Executive Sessions of Independent Directors. Our directors have met and will continue to meet in regularly scheduled executive sessions without management present. The NYSE requires our independent directors to meet once a year. Under our Board s own policy, our independent directors will meet by themselves at least quarterly. As the Presiding Director, Mr. Usher leads these executive sessions.

Communicating with Our Board

You may communicate directly with any director or the full Board. To do so, please write to:

Presiding Director

The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. Board of Directors

P.O. Box 2705

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15230-2705

Our employees will not open or otherwise screen any communications sent to this address. The communications will be delivered directly to the Presiding Director, who will determine how to respond.

If you send director-related communications to our offices, we will handle them in accordance with a collection and organization process approved by the Board s independent

directors. These communications are subject to a screening process that will determine which communications will be relayed to directors.

Please follow the instructions beginning on page 121 if you are a shareholder and want to:

Make a nomination for the election of a director.

Submit proposals to be considered for inclusion in our 2011 proxy materials.

Make a proposal for action at an annual meeting of shareholders.

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our directors, officers and employees. The SEC requires us to adopt a code of ethics that applies to our CEO and senior financial officers, and we intend this Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to satisfy this requirement.

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics addresses these important topics, among others:

Our commitment to ethics and values.

Fair dealing with customers, suppliers, competitors, and employees.

Conflicts and potential conflicts of interest.

Self-dealing, insider trading and outside employment.

Transactions with PNC.

Gifts and entertainment.

Creating business records, document retention, and protecting confidential information.

Protection and proper use of our assets, including intellectual property and electronic media.

Communicating with the public.

Political contributions and fundraising.

Compliance with law and regulations.

Protection from retaliation.

The PNC Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on our website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**. Any shareholder may also request a free print copy by writing to our Corporate Secretary at the address given on page 7.

The Audit Committee must approve any waivers or exceptions to Code provisions for our directors or executive officers. We will post on our website any future amendments to, or waivers from, a provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to our directors or executive officers (including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Controller).

Board Committees

Our Board currently has five standing committees. Four of these committees Audit, Nominating and Governance, Personnel and Compensation, and Risk meet on a regular basis. The Executive Committee meets as needed and may act on behalf of the Board in between Board meetings. The purpose of the Executive Committee is to provide an efficient means of considering matters and taking actions (such as merger and acquisition activities) requiring the exercise of the Board s powers or authority.

Our by-laws authorize the Board to create other committees. Each committee may form and delegate authority to subcommittees of one or more committee members.

Each committee operates under a written charter approved by the Board. The committee annually reviews and reassesses each charter. The descriptions of the committee functions in this proxy statement are qualified by reference to the committee charters and our relevant by-law provisions.

Each committee also performs an annual self-evaluation to determine whether the committee is functioning effectively and fulfilling its charter duties.

The principal purposes of the Audit, Nominating and Governance, Personnel and Compensation, and Risk Committees are described below.

Audit Committee

Membership. The Audit Committee consists entirely of independent directors. When our Board holds its annual organization meeting on April 27, 2010, only independent directors will be appointed to the Committee. The current members are Paul W. Chellgren (Chairman), Richard B. Kelson, Bruce C. Lindsay, Donald J. Shepard and George H. Walls, Jr. Acting on the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee, the Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Chellgren and Mr. Kelson are both audit committee financial experts, as that term is defined in the SEC s regulations.

Duties and Responsibilities. Our Board most recently approved the charter of the Audit Committee on February 10, 2010. The current charter is available on our website at www.pnc.com/corporategovernance.

Under its charter and the duties it performs, our Audit Committee satisfies the requirements of SEC Rule 10A-3, which include the following:

The independence of committee members.

The responsibility for selecting and overseeing our independent auditors.

The establishment of procedures for handling complaints regarding the company s accounting practices.

The authority of the Audit Committee to engage advisors.

The determination of appropriate funding for payment of the independent auditors and any outside advisors engaged by the Audit Committee and for the payment of the ordinary administrative expenses of the Committee.

The Audit Committee s primary purposes are to provide assistance to the Board by: (1) monitoring the integrity of our consolidated financial statements; (2) monitoring compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and with our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; (3) evaluating and monitoring the independent auditors qualifications and independence; and (4) evaluating and monitoring the performance of our internal audit function and independent auditors. The Audit Committee must also prepare the report required by SEC regulations to be included in this proxy statement. The Committee s report begins on page 59.

The Audit Committee is directly responsible for the appointment, compensation and oversight of our independent auditors (including the resolution of disagreements between management and the auditors regarding financial reporting) for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or related work. For work performed by the independent auditors, the committee must approve all audit engagement fees and terms, as well as all permitted non-audit engagements. The Committee pre-approves all audit services and permitted non-audit services. The Committee considers whether providing non-audit services will impair the auditors independence. The Audit Committee s procedures for the pre-approval of audit and permitted non-audit services are described beginning on page 58.

The Committee s responsibility is one of oversight. It is not the duty of the Committee to prepare our financial statements, to plan or conduct audits, or to determine that our financial statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. It is not the duty of the Committee to assure compliance with laws and regulations or PNC s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Our management is responsible for preparing our financial statements and for maintaining internal controls, and the independent auditors are responsible for auditing the financial statements.

The Committee has the authority to retain independent legal, accounting or other advisors. The Committee regularly holds separate sessions with our management, internal auditors and independent auditors. The independent auditors report directly to the Committee. Our General Auditor reports directly to the Committee, which is responsible for reviewing his or her performance evaluation and approving his or her compensation.

Under our corporate governance guidelines, Audit Committee members may only serve on three public company audit committees, including PNC s. We adopted this limit in recognition of our Audit Committee s responsibilities and time commitment required.

Nominating and Governance Committee

Membership. The Nominating and Governance Committee consists entirely of independent directors. When our Board holds its annual organization meeting on April 27, 2010, only independent directors will be appointed to the Committee. The current members are Thomas J. Usher (Chairman), Charles E. Bunch, Robert N. Clay, Anthony A. Massaro, Dennis F. Strigl, and Helge H. Wehmeier.

Duties and Responsibilities. Our Board most recently approved the charter of the Nominating and Governance Committee on February 10, 2010. The current charter is available on our website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**.

Table of Contents

The primary purpose of our Nominating and Governance Committee is to assist our Board in promoting the best interests of PNC and its shareholders through the implementation of sound corporate governance principles and practices. The Committee also assists the Board by identifying individuals qualified to become Board members. The Committee recommends to the Board the director nominees for each annual meeting, and may also recommend the appointment of qualified individuals as directors between annual meetings.

In addition to the annual self-evaluation that all committees perform, the Committee also oversees the annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and all committees and reports to the Board on the evaluation results. The Nominating and Governance Committee also annually reviews and recommends any changes to the Executive Committee charter.

How We Evaluate Directors and Candidates. Each year, the Committee assesses the composition of our Board and decides whether to recommend an incumbent director for re-election. From time to time, the Committee also considers whether to add members to our Board.

In evaluating existing directors or new candidates, the Committee assesses the needs of the Board and the qualifications of the individual. Please see the discussion on pages 42-56 for more information on each of our current director nominees.

Our Board must meet SEC, NYSE, and other standards. At least a majority of our directors must satisfy the NYSE independence standards. Our Audit Committee must include independent, financially literate directors with accounting or related financial management expertise.

Beyond that, the Committee expects directors to gain a sound understanding of our strategic vision, our mix of businesses, and our approach to regulatory relations and risk management. The Board must possess a mix of qualities and skills to address the various risks facing PNC. For a discussion of our Board s oversight of risk, please see the section entitle *Risk Committee*, which begins on page 19.

In evaluating individual candidates, our Board approved criteria to assist the Committee in its identification of qualified directors. These criteria include:

A sustained record of high achievement, manifest competence, and integrity.

A strong commitment to the ethical and diligent pursuit of shareholders best interests.

The strength of character necessary to challenge management s recommendations and actions when appropriate and to confirm the adequacy and completeness of management s responses to such challenges to his or her satisfaction.

Our Board s strong desire to maintain its diversity in terms of race and gender.

Personal qualities that will help to sustain an atmosphere of mutual respect and collegiality among the members of our Board.

The Committee has not adopted any specific, minimum qualifications for director candidates. Each year, the Committee assesses our current directors for possible nomination and re-election. In doing so, it considers all of the factors listed above. The Committee considers the needs of the Board, the independence of directors from PNC, a director s meeting attendance and participation, and the value of a director s contributions to the effectiveness of our Board and its committees.

Although the Board has not adopted a formal policy on diversity, the Committee considers the diversity, age, skills, and experience of directors in the context of the overall needs of the Board. The Committee evaluates diversity in a broad sense, recognizing the benefits of racial and gender diversity, but also considering the breadth of backgrounds, skills, and experiences that directors and candidates may bring to our Board.

How We Identify New Directors. The Committee may identify potential directors in a number of ways. The Committee may consider recommendations made by current or former directors or members of executive management. When appropriate, the Committee may retain search firms to identify candidates.

We may also identify potential directors through contacts in the business, civic, academic, legal and non-profit communities. If a shareholder would like to recommend a director for our Board, please see *Requirements for Director Nominations and Shareholder Proposals*, beginning on page 121.

The Committee will meet to consider relevant information regarding a director candidate, in light of the evaluation criteria and needs of our Board. If the Committee does not recommend a candidate for nomination or appointment, or for more evaluation, no further action is taken. The Committee Chairman will later report this decision to the full Board. For shareholder-recommended candidates, the Committee s secretary will inform the shareholder of the decision and the date of the meeting.

If the Committee decides to recommend a candidate to our Board as a nominee for election at an annual meeting of shareholders or for appointment by our Board, the Committee Chairman will report that decision to the full Board at its next meeting. Before that meeting, each of the other directors will receive the same biographical and other background information about the candidate that the Committee considered.

After allowing for a discussion, the full Board will vote on whether to nominate the candidate for election or appoint the candidate to the Board. The Board may postpone this vote if it needs more information or deliberation, including additional evaluations regarding independence.

Potential candidates may be informally approached by Mr. Rohr, as Chairman, or Mr. Usher, as Committee Chairman. As our corporate governance guidelines indicate, invitations to join the Board should come from PNC s Chairman and the Committee Chairman, jointly acting on behalf of our entire Board.

Personnel and Compensation Committee

Membership. The Personnel and Compensation Committee consists entirely of independent directors. The Committee membership satisfies the independence standards established by applicable federal income tax and securities laws, as well as the NYSE independence standards. When our Board holds its annual organization meeting on April 27, 2010, only independent directors will be appointed to the Committee. The current members are Dennis F. Strigl (Chairman), Charles E. Bunch, Paul W. Chellgren, Kay Coles James, Richard B. Kelson, and Thomas J. Usher.

Duties and Responsibilities. Our Board most recently approved the charter of the Personnel and Compensation Committee on February 10, 2010. The current charter is available on our website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**.

The Committee s principal purpose is to discharge our Board s oversight responsibilities relating to the compensation of our executive officers and other designated employees. For executive officers and any other applicable employees, the Committee may evaluate and approve or recommend for approval benefit, incentive compensation, severance, equity-based or other compensation plans, policies and programs.

Under its charter, the Committee has the authority to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, compensation, accounting, or other advisors. The Committee retains an independent compensation consultant. The Committee s charter provides the Committee with the sole authority to retain and terminate a compensation consultant acting on the Committee s behalf, and to approve the consultant s fees and other retention terms with respect to such service to the Committee.

The Committee also reviews the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and recommends to our Board that the CD&A be included in this proxy statement. This recommendation may be found in the *Compensation Committee Report* on pages 91-92. The CD&A begins on page 68. The Committee reviews the risk impact of our incentive compensation programs and plans. See *Compensation and Risk* on pages 93-96.

In addition, the Committee receives an annual succession planning report and management presentation. The materials include, among other things, a discussion of the individual performance of executive officers. These performance appraisals provide necessary background and context to the Committee, and give each Committee member a familiarity with the executive s position, duties, responsibilities and performance. The Committee has responsibility for reviewing and evaluating the development of an executive management succession plan and for reviewing our progress on diversity.

The Committee s Decision Making Process. The Committee meets at least six times a year. Before each meeting, the Committee Chairman reviews the agenda, materials and issues with members of our management and the Committee s independent executive compensation consultant, as appropriate. The Committee may invite legal counsel or other external consultants to advise the Committee during meetings and preparatory sessions.

The Committee regularly meets in executive sessions without management present. At each in-person meeting of our full Board, the Committee Chairman presents a report of the

items discussed and the actions approved at previous Committee meetings. The Chairman provides these reports during an executive session of the Board. The Committee consults with the non-management and independent directors regarding significant decisions affecting the CEO s compensation.

The Committee has guidelines for information presented to the Committee. The guidelines contemplate that any major changes in policies or programs be considered over the course of two separate Committee meetings, with any vote occurring at the later meeting. The guidelines also describe the recommendations for the content and timing of information being submitted to the Committee. For significant proposals, information presented to the Committee should include, among other things, a written analysis and recommendation by the Committee s independent consultant, an overview of the internal implications of any proposal or decision, and a summary of related public disclosure. The guidelines also note that the Committee s independent consultant should present any proposals or other recommendations concerning our CEO s compensation.

The Committee reviews all of the elements of the compensation programs periodically and adjusts those programs as appropriate. Each year, the Committee makes decisions regarding the amount of annual compensation and equity-based or other longer-term compensation. For the most part, these decisions are made in the first quarter of each year, using both forward-looking and historical performance. As described in the CD&A, the Committee deviated from its historical practice in 2009 and 2010 due to the various restrictions arising from PNC s participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Program. The Committee reviews aspects of our post-employment compensation programs annually, but does not necessarily adjust them each year.

Delegations of Authority. The Committee has delegated the authority to make certain decisions to various members of management. In particular, the Committee has delegated to the Chief Human Resources Officer the ability to take actions with respect to compensation and benefit plans and arrangements, including the ability to adopt or amend plans and arrangements if the annual GAAP cost is below a certain dollar threshold, to make clarifications and technical changes, and to take actions to implement, administer, interpret or construe plans and arrangements, and to make eligibility determinations.

The Committee has also delegated to the CEO the ability to offer change-in-control agreements at certain levels to employees. In November 2009, the Committee delegated authority to members of executive management to allow for the determination of equity grants for less senior employees. The Committee also delegated authority to our Chief Human Resources Officer to vest certain equity grants and award restricted stock units to less senior employees.

Management s Role in Compensation Determinations. Our executive officers, including our CEO and our Chief Human Resources Officer, often present compensation recommendations to the Committee for review. The Chief Human Resources Officer, along with other members of management, typically schedules initial meetings with the Chairman of the Committee and a representative of McLagan, the Committee s independent compensation consultant, to review proposed recommendations and rationales prior to a full Committee meeting.

During Committee meetings, the CEO often reviews corporate and individual performance as part of the compensation discussions, and other members of executive management may be invited to speak to the Committee about specific business performance. The Committee reviews any compensation decisions for the Chief Human Resources Officer and CEO in executive session, without either officer present for the discussion of their compensation. Any recommendations for CEO compensation are prepared by McLagan and discussed in executive session, with no members of management present for the discussion.

Role of Compensation Consultants. The Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate any compensation consultant directly assisting it. The Committee also has the sole authority to approve fees and other engagement terms. The Committee receives comparative compensation data from our management, from proxy statements and other public disclosures, and through surveys and reports prepared by McLagan and Towers Watson.

McLagan. Under its authority, the Committee retains McLagan, an independent consulting firm, to advise it on executive compensation matters. In this capacity, McLagan reports directly to the Committee.

The Committee considers McLagan to be an independent compensation consultant and annually reviews the performance of McLagan, as well as the perceived independence. In January 2010, the Committee evaluated the scope and nature of the services provided by McLagan and McLagan s overall performance. After discussing the results of the review, and having an opportunity to ask questions of McLagan s representative, the Committee determined, in executive session, that McLagan was independent from PNC s management. The Committee also concluded that McLagan provided appropriate support to the Committee. This review was included as part of the Committee s annual self-evaluation process.

McLagan attends all of the in-person and telephonic meetings of the Committee, and meets regularly with the Committee without members of management present. McLagan also reviews and may contribute to meeting agendas. McLagan and members of management both assist the Committee in its review of proposed compensation packages for our executive officers. McLagan prepares all recommendations for the compensation of the CEO, which are reviewed in executive session without any members of management present. McLagan also prepares competitive pay analyses and other benchmarking reviews for the Committee.

Throughout the year, McLagan also assists the Committee in its analysis and evaluation of our overall executive compensation program and the structures used to pay our executive officers. McLagan reviews information supplied by management and compensation-related surveys and reports. From time to time, McLagan may be requested to help the Committee evaluate compensation programs that are specific to business units.

Fees Paid to McLagan and Affiliates. In 2009, PNC paid McLagan \$598,110 for Committee-related work. McLagan also provides limited services directly to our management. Management often requests these services due to a particular business or subject matter expertise offered by McLagan. McLagan has also provided our management with industry-specific surveys of compensation practices that are not customized for PNC. The Committee

Table of Contents

reviews reports describing the services provided directly to our management, and the associated fees that McLagan receives. In 2009, PNC paid McLagan \$99,298 in fees for management-related work and an additional \$104,419 for surveys that were not related to Committee work. The Committee believes that providing limited services to management, primarily informational rather than advisory, does not impair the independence of the advice it receives from McLagan.

McLagan is an affiliate of Aon Corporation, a global provider of risk management services, insurance and reinsurance brokerage, and human capital consulting. In 2009, the legacy PNC business paid Aon or affiliates \$142,746 in fees, and the legacy National City business paid Aon or affiliates an additional \$213,754.

Management expects the fees paid to Aon to be substantially reduced in 2010. The 2009 fees were largely attributable to non-recurring services, generally as a result of PNC s acquisition of National City. These fees included services related to split-dollar and corporate-owned life insurance programs, one-time analyses arising from the National City transaction, property rental payments to an Aon subsidiary, and services provided to former National City subsidiaries that are no longer active.

None of these additional fees were approved by the Board or the Committee. The Committee has asked management to eliminate any future fees paid to Aon, provided that other vendors can perform similar work on our behalf.

Towers Watson and Other Consultants. Our management retains other compensation consultants. It uses Towers Watson (formerly Towers Perrin), a global professional services firm, as its principal compensation advisor. Towers Watson provides various actuarial and management consulting services to us, including:

Analyzing the competitiveness of specific compensation programs, such as executive retirement benefits or change of control arrangements.

Preparing specific actuarial calculations on values under our retirement plans.

Preparing tally sheets for management s use and analysis.

Preparing surveys of competitive pay practices.

Analyzing our director compensation packages and provide reports to our management and the Board s Nominating and Governance Committee.

Updating management on the effect of relevant laws and regulations.

Reports prepared by Towers Watson that relate to executive compensation may also be shared with the Committee and McLagan, and Towers Watson may, from time to time, make presentations to the Committee.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation. None of the current members of the Personnel and Compensation Committee are officers or former officers of PNC or any of our subsidiaries. None of our executive officers served as a member of the compensation committee of another entity whose executive officer served as our director or on our Personnel and Compensation Committee. None of our executive officers served as a director of an entity whose executive officer served on our Personnel and Compensation Committee.

Table of Contents

Certain members of the Personnel and Compensation Committee, and their associates, were our customers or had transactions with us (or our subsidiaries) during 2009. Transactions that involved loans or commitments by subsidiary banks were made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectibility or present other unfavorable features.

Please see Director and Executive Officer Relationships Related Person Transactions Policies and Procedures Regulation O Policies and Procedures, which begins on page 35, for more information.

Risk Committee

Membership. Our Board formed the Risk Committee in 2005. The Committee replaced several separate Board committees and consolidated the oversight of enterprise-wide risk. The Risk Committee includes independent and management directors. The current members are Stephen G. Thieke (Chairman), Richard O. Berndt, Bruce C. Lindsay, Anthony A. Massaro, Jane G. Pepper, James E. Rohr, Donald J. Shepard, and Lorene K. Steffes.

Duties and Responsibilities. Our Board most recently approved the charter of the Risk Committee on February 10, 2010. The current charter is available on our website at www.pnc.com/corporategovernance.

The Risk Committee s purpose is to provide oversight of our enterprise-wide risk structure and the processes established to identify, measure, monitor, and manage our credit risk, market risk (including liquidity risk), and operating risk (including technology, operational, compliance, and fiduciary risk).

The Risk Committee periodically reviews management s strategies and policies for managing these risks. The Committee should serve as the primary point of contact between our Board and the management-level committees dealing with strategy and risk management. The Committee is intended to enhance our Board s oversight and understanding of enterprise-wide risk management activities and effectiveness.

The Committee s responsibility is one of oversight, and the Committee has no duty to assure compliance with laws and regulations. Some of the Risk Committee s duties include:

	Credit		Operating	Capital
Enterprise Risk		Market and		
Management	Risk	Liquidity Risk	Risk	Management
Review enterprise policies reflecting risk management philosophy, principles, and limits	Review reports of credit risk profile and whether it is within established policy limits	Review reports of interest rate, trading and liquidity risk profiles and whether they are within established policy limits	Review reports of operating risk profile and whether it is within established policy limits	Review reports on capital structure and adequacy
Review assessment of the enterprise risk profile and alignment with strategic plan	Review assessments of asset quality and trends and the effectiveness of credit risk management practices	Review reports concerning significant capital markets activities, portfolio activities, and trends	Review reports on the adequacy of our business recovery plans, information security program, and significantinformation technology arrangements	Recommend Board approval of capital management activities, including dividend policy, stock repurchases, and stock issuances
Consider the impact of risk taking incentives on enterprise risk profile	Review credit audit assessments		Review and approve the Anti-Money Laundering program	
Review implementation plans and processes related to the Basel II framework				

The Risk Committee may also form sub-committees from time to time. It has formed a sub-committee to review implementation plans and qualification processes related to the Basel II framework.

The Personnel and Compensation Committee reviews the risk components of our incentive compensation plans. For a discussion of the relationship between compensation and risk, please see *Compensation and Risk*, beginning on page 93.

Board Meetings in 2009

The chart below shows the names of our directors who served in 2009 and did not resign or retire. The chart also shows each Board committee on which he or she served, and the number of meetings held. We also identify the chairs of each committee, and the directors designated by our Board as audit committee financial experts .

There were 14 Board meetings held in 2009. Each director attended at least 75% of the combined total number of meetings of the Board and all committees on which the director served.

		Nominating and	Personnel and		
Director	Audit	Governance	Compensation	Risk	Executive
Richard O. Berndt			•		
Charles E. Bunch					
Paul W. Chellgren*	Chair				
Robert N. Clay					
Kay Coles James					
Richard B. Kelson*					
Bruce C. Lindsay					
Anthony A. Massaro					
Jane G. Pepper					
James E. Rohr					
Donald J. Shepard					
Lorene K. Steffes					
Dennis F. Strigl			Chair		
Stephen G. Thieke				Chair	
Thomas J. Usher		Chair			Chair
George H. Walls, Jr.					
Helge H. Wehmeier					
Meetings in 2009	16	5	12	9	2
* Designated as Audit Committee Financial Expert					

Our Board, acting on the recommendation of its Nominating and Governance Committee, has adopted a policy that strongly encourages each director to attend the annual meeting in person, if possible. We remind each director of this policy before the date of the annual meeting. All of our directors attended PNC s 2009 annual meeting of shareholders.

Board Compensation in 2009

Our Board s Nominating and Governance Committee reviews non-employee director compensation and makes an annual compensation recommendation to the Board. The Committee reviews the annual retainer and meeting fees, committee Chairman and Presiding Director retainers, equity-based grants and the three compensation plans applicable to non-employee directors. In addition to annual compensation, the committee may approve special compensation to a director for extraordinary service.

The committee also receives a report from Towers Watson that analyzes the non-employee director compensation program and compares the program to peer group programs. The primary objectives of the committee s annual review are to confirm

continued alignment with business and shareholder interests, evaluate the competitiveness of our director compensation program relative to the peer group and to identify and respond to continued changes in director compensation in light of the competitive environment.

Mr. Rohr receives no additional compensation for serving as a PNC director. All other directors are paid under compensation schedules approved by the Nominating and Governance Committee.

We explain the elements of the 2009 compensation program for non-employee directors below. On April 27, 2010, the Nominating and Governance Committee will conduct its annual compensation review for 2010.

Annual Retainer Schedule		Meeting Fee Schedule	
Retainer (for each director)	\$ 45,000	Each Board meeting, except quarterly telephonic dividend meetings	\$ 1,500
Additional Retainer for:		Each quarterly telephonic dividend meeting	\$ 750
Each Committee Chairman	\$ 10,000	For each of the first six meetings held annually by each Committee or Subcommittee on which the director serves	\$ 1,500
Chairman of Audit Committee	\$ 10,000	For the seventh and each succeeding meeting held annually by each Committee or Subcommittee on which the director serves	\$ 2,000
Chairman of Risk Committee	\$ 10,000		
Presiding Director	\$ 10,000		

2009 Equity-Based Grants*

Value of 2,472 deferred stock units awarded to each Director s account under the Outside Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan as \$99,992 of April 28, 2009

* In January 2009, each director received approximately \$5,000 worth of PNC common stock under the 1992 Director Share Incentive Plan. This plan, which provided for an automatic annual grant of stock, was terminated by the Board in 2009.

Deferred Compensation Plans. Our non-management directors are also eligible to participate in the two deferred compensation plans described in this table:

	Directors Deferred	Outside Directors Deferred
	Compensation Plan	Stock Unit Plan
Purpose	Voluntary deferral of retainers and meeting fees	Automatic deferral of
		stock unit awards
Investment Options	At the director s option, stock units may track PNC common stock price or an interest rate	Stock units track PNC common stock price
	(10-year Treasury note)	
		Director may choose
Payout Date and Beneficiary	Director may choose	(In general, payout date cannot occur before retirement from the Board or age 70.)
Voting Rights and Dividends	If investment choice tracks PNC stock, director will receive deemed dividends, but will not have voting rights	Director will receive deemed dividends, will not have voting rights
Payout	Cash	1

Director Stock Ownership Requirement. Our Board has adopted a common stock purchase requirement for our non-management directors. Each director must annually purchase or acquire PNC common stock (or phantom shares) equaling at least 25% of the annual retainer for that year. A director may satisfy this requirement through open market purchases, or investments in phantom shares of common stock in our two deferred compensation plans.

Any non-management director who holds at least 5,000 shares of PNC common stock (or phantom shares) as of the last business day of the preceding calendar year is not subject to this requirement. As of the end of 2009, all directors owned at least 5,000 shares of PNC common stock or common stock units.

Other Director Benefits. Our directors are generally entitled to the following benefits:

PNC Directors Charitable Matching Gift Program. We will match a director s personal gifts to qualifying charities up to a limit of \$5,000 a year. Mr. Rohr is only eligible to participate in our employee matching gift program (\$2,500 annual limit).

Insurance Policies. We pay for various insurance policies that protect directors and their families from personal loss connected with Board service.

Travel, Lodging and Meals. We pay for expenses connected with our directors Board service, including travel on private or commercial aircraft, lodging and meals.

Incidental Benefits. We may provide various incidental benefits, including: holiday gifts; tickets to sports, cultural, social and other events; and travel on our corporate aircraft for personal purposes in very limited circumstances, such as a family emergency or when a seat is available on a trip already planned by one of our officers.

With respect to the fiscal year 2009, we provided the following compensation to our directors:

2009 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name	s Earned or id in Cash (a)	Stoc	k Awards (b)	Option Awards (c)	ll Other npensation (d)	Total
Richard O. Berndt	\$ 84,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 9.711	\$ 193,703
Charles E. Bunch	\$ 98,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 8,235	\$ 206,727
Paul W. Chellgren	\$ 137,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 42,660	\$ 280,152
Robert N. Clay	\$ 78,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 25,140	\$ 203,132
George A. Davidson, Jr.*	\$ 43,972	\$		\$	\$ 17,626	\$ 61,598
Kay Coles James	\$ 86,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 5,490	\$ 191,482
Richard B. Kelson	\$ 109,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 17,129	\$ 226,621
Bruce C. Lindsay	\$ 105,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 21,295	\$ 226,787
Anthony A. Massaro	\$ 93,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 9,955	\$ 202,947
Jane G. Pepper	\$ 84,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 18,452	\$ 202,944
Donald J. Shepard	\$ 115,750	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 19,691	\$ 235,433
Lorene K. Steffes	\$ 85,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 16,079	\$ 201,571
Dennis F. Strigl	\$ 102,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 31,858	\$ 234,350
Stephen G. Thieke	\$ 110,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 11,848	\$ 221,840
Thomas J. Usher	\$ 131,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 36,643	\$ 268,135
George H. Walls, Jr.	\$ 101,500	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 7,539	\$ 209,031
Helge H. Wehmeier	\$ 78,000	\$	99,992	\$	\$ 21,896	\$ 199,888

- * On April 28, 2009, George A. Davidson, Jr. retired as a director of PNC.
- (a) This column includes the annual retainer for directors and the Board and committee meeting fees paid in 2009. This includes the meeting fees for the fourth quarter of 2008, which were paid in the first quarter of 2009, but does not include the meeting fees for the fourth quarter of 2009, which were paid in the first quarter of 2010. The amounts in this column also include the fees deferred by the following directors under our Directors Deferred Compensation Plan, a non-qualified defined contribution plan: Paul W. Chellgren (\$137,500); Kay Coles James (\$21,500); Bruce C. Lindsay (\$88,750); Jane G. Pepper (\$10,000); Donald J. Shepard (\$115,750); Lorene K. Steffes (\$17,100); Dennis F. Strigl (\$102,500); Stephen G. Thieke (\$10,000); Thomas J. Usher (\$131,500); and George H. Walls, Jr. (\$101,500).
- (b) The dollar values in this column include the grant date fair value, under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation, of 2,472 deferred stock units awarded to each director s account under our Outside Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan as of April 28, 2009, the date of grant. The closing stock price of PNC on the date of grant was \$40.45 a share. In 2009, the Board terminated the 1992 Director Share Incentive Plan.

As of December 31, 2009, each non-employee director had the following outstanding stock units and stock options:

		Stock
Name	Stock Units	Options
Richard O. Berndt	6,625	
Charles E. Bunch	5,339	
Paul W. Chellgren	38,394	14,000
Robert N. Clay	26,047	8,000
George A. Davidson, Jr.	0	14,000
Kay Coles James	8,128	
Richard B. Kelson	14,862	2,000
Bruce C. Lindsay	20,913	
Anthony A. Massaro	11,320	6,000
Jane G. Pepper	16,271	14,000
Donald J. Shepard	12,859	
Lorene K. Steffes	14,303	14,000
Dennis F. Strigl	16,640	14,000
Stephen G. Thieke	11,637	6,000
Thomas J. Usher	37,769	14,000
George H. Walls, Jr.	11,083	
Helge H. Wehmeier	25,255	14,000

A deferred stock unit is a phantom share of our common stock, which will be paid to the participants in cash. This chart includes deferred stock units awarded by PNC under the Outside Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan, as well as stock units voluntarily deferred by the director under the Directors Deferred Compensation Plan. In 2009, PNC granted a total of 39,552 deferred stock units to 16 non-employee directors under the Outside Directors Deferred Stock Unit Plan. Shepard, this chart also includes stock units deferred under the Mercantile Bankshares Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan.

No stock options have been granted to any non-employee director since 2005.

(c) Please see footnote (b).

(d) As noted in the table for each non-employee director listed below, this column reflects the dollar amount of matching gifts made by us in 2009 to charitable organizations, income under the Director Deferred Compensation Plan, the Outside Director Deferred Stock Unit Plan, and the Mercantile Bankshares Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan.

Director Name	Matching Gifts		Outside Director Deferred Stock Unit Plan	Mercantile Bankshares Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan	
Richard O. Berndt	\$ 5,000	Plan \$	\$ 3,235	\$ 1,476	
Charles E. Bunch	\$ 5,000	\$	\$ 3,235	\$ 1,170	
Paul W. Chellgren	\$ 5,000	\$ 25,135	\$ 12,525	\$	
Robert N. Clay	\$ 2,500	\$ 12,212	\$ 10,428	\$	
George A. Davidson, Jr.	\$ 5,000	\$	\$ 12,626	\$	
Kay Coles James	\$	\$ 877	\$ 4,613	\$	
Richard B. Kelson	\$ 5,000	\$ 4,099	\$ 8,030	\$	
Bruce C. Lindsay	\$ 5,000	\$ 3,218	\$ 13,077	\$	
Anthony A. Massaro	\$	\$ 1,925	\$ 8,030	\$	
Jane G. Pepper	\$ 5,000	\$ 2,568	\$ 10,884	\$	
Donald J. Shepard	\$ 5,000	\$ 3,699	\$ 3,235	\$ 7,757	
Lorene K. Steffes	\$ 1,000	\$ 6,586	\$ 8,493	\$	
Dennis F. Strigl	\$ 5,000	\$ 18,828	\$ 8,030	\$	
Stephen G. Thieke	\$ 2,750	\$ 1,068	\$ 8,030	\$	
Thomas J. Usher	\$ 5,000	\$ 18,455	\$ 13,188	\$	
George H. Walls, Jr.	\$	\$ 2,926	\$ 4,613	\$	
Helge H. Wehmeier	\$	\$ 8,975	\$ 12,921	\$	

The All Other Compensation column also reflects income of \$4,560.93 under the PNC Bank Kentucky, Inc. Directors Deferred Compensation Plan for Mr. Chellgren.

DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE OFFICER RELATIONSHIPS

This section discusses relationships between PNC (or affiliated entities) and our directors, executive officers, immediate family members, or certain affiliated entities, including transactions that we analyzed to determine the independence of our directors under the NYSE corporate governance listing standards and our own categorical standards of independence.

This section describes the NYSE independence standards for directors, our categorical standards of independence, our Board s independence determinations and the policies and procedures we have in place to monitor related person transactions.

Director Independence

To be independent, our Board must affirmatively determine that a director does not have a material relationship with PNC. A material relationship between a director and PNC could also include a relationship between PNC and an organization affiliated with a director.

The NYSE describes specific relationships that will impair independence. The absence of one of these bright-line relationships does not mean that a director is automatically independent. The Board must consider all relevant facts and circumstances in determining whether a material relationship exists.

Material relationships that we may consider include commercial, industrial, banking, consulting, legal, accounting, charitable and familial relationships. The ownership of a significant amount of PNC stock, by itself, will not prevent a finding of independence.

The NYSE bright-line independence tests. Each of the following bright-line relationship tests adopted by the NYSE describes circumstances that will automatically impair a director s independence.

A director who is also an employee of PNC.

A director whose immediate family member is a PNC executive officer.

The receipt of more than \$120,000 a year in direct compensation from PNC, except for certain permitted payments (such as director fees).

Certain relationships with PNC s external or internal auditors.

A director (or immediate family member) who has been an executive officer of a company where a PNC executive officer serves or served on that company s compensation committee.

Business relationships involving companies that make payments to, or receive payments from, PNC in excess of certain amounts.

An employee-director of PNC (or a director with an immediate family member who is a PNC executive officer) will not be independent until three years after the employment relationship ends. The other bright-line tests will impair independence if they existed at any time within the past three years.

For more information about the NYSE s bright-line director independence tests, including the commentary explaining the application of the tests, please go to the NYSE s website a**www.nyse.com**.

Our Categorical Standards of Independence. To help assess the existence of a material relationship, our Board has adopted certain categorical standards of independence. The standards describe categories of relationships that will not be considered material for independence purposes. If a relationship meets the criteria outlined in a categorical standard, it will not be deemed to be a material relationship. The Board may affirm a director s independence, without further analysis, if all relationships meet the categorical standards.

These standards allow investors to assess the quality of a Board s independence while avoiding excessive disclosure of immaterial relationships. Our Board, acting on the recommendation of its Nominating and Governance Committee, has adopted four categories of relationships that will not be material. The Board applied these standards in determining the independence of the director nominees. Our categorical standards of independence are described in detail below. We also post these standards at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**.

PNC Categorical Standards of Independence

None of the relationships described below will be deemed to be a material relationship between a director and PNC. If a director has such a relationship, the director may be deemed to be independent for purposes of the NYSE bright-line standards (Section 303A.02), unless the relationship causes the director not to be independent as a result of any of the provisions of Section 303A.02(b). The provisions of Section 303A.02(b) establish independence standards involving the employment, affiliations, and compensation of a director or an immediate family member.

Also, a director who is an executive officer or an employee, or whose immediate family member is an executive officer, of a company that makes payments to, or receives payments from, PNC or its subsidiaries in an amount which, in any single fiscal year, exceeds the greater of \$1 million or 2% of such other company s consolidated gross revenues, is not independent until three years after falling below such threshold (the Payments Test).

Relationships arising in the ordinary course of business. Lending, deposit, banking, or other financial service relationships (such as those involving fiduciary, brokerage, investment management, custody, capital markets, treasury management, or similar products and services) or other relationships involving the provision of products or services either by or to the Corporation or its subsidiaries and involving a director, his or her immediate family members, or a company or charitable organization of which the director or an immediate family member is a partner, shareholder, officer, employee or director will not be considered material relationships if the following conditions and the Payments Test are satisfied:

the products and services are being provided in the ordinary course of

business and on substantially the same terms and conditions, including price, as would be available to similarly situated customers;

the relationship does not involve the provision of consulting, legal, or accounting services to PNC or its subsidiaries by the director or immediate family member personally when PNC or a subsidiary is the primary client of the director or immediate family member, or by a firm of which the director or immediate family member is a partner, managing member, principal, or an executive officer with significant policy-making authority over the firm; and

any extension of credit: (i) was made in the ordinary course of business, was made on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons; (ii) is pass-rated and performing; and (iii) complies with any additional requirements imposed on the extension of credit by Regulation O of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or other applicable laws and regulations.

Relationships with companies of which a director is a shareholder or partnerships of which a director is a partner. Any relationship not described above, between PNC or one of its subsidiaries and a company (including a limited liability company) or partnership to which a director is connected solely as a shareholder or partner will not be considered a material relationship, provided the director is not a principal shareholder of the company or a principal partner of the partnership. For purposes of this categorical standard, a person is a principal shareholder of a company if he or she directly or indirectly, or acting in concert with one or more persons, owns, controls, or has the power to vote more than 10 percent of any class of voting securities of the company. A person is a principal partner of a partnership if he or she directly or indirectly, or acting in concert with one or more persons, owns, controls, or has the power to vote a 25 percent or more general partnership interest, or more than a 10 percent overall partnership interest and has the single largest interest in the partnership. Shares or partnership interests owned or controlled by a director s immediate family member who shares the director s home are considered to be held by the director.

Contributions made or pledged to charitable organizations. Contributions made to any charitable organization pursuant to a matching gift program maintained by PNC or by its subsidiaries or by any foundation sponsored by or associated with PNC or its subsidiaries are not considered to be a material relationship and shall not be included in calculating the materiality threshold set forth in (a), below. Other contributions made or pledged by PNC, its subsidiaries, or by any foundation sponsored by or associated with PNC or its subsidiaries to a charitable organization of which a director or an immediate family member is an executive officer, director, or trustee will not be considered a material relationship if the following conditions are satisfied:

within the preceding three years, the total amount of such contributions during any single fiscal year of the charitable organization did not exceed the greater

of \$1 million or 2 percent of the charitable organization s consolidated gross revenues for that fiscal year; and

the charitable organization is not a family foundation created by the director or an immediate family member.

Certain familial relationships. A relationship involving a director s relative will not be considered a material relationship solely by virtue of the familial relationship if the relative is not an immediate family member of the director.

The term immediate family members as used in these categorical standards is defined in the general commentary to Section 303A.02(b) to include a director s spouse, parents, children, siblings, mothers and fathers-in-law, sons and daughters-in-law, brothers and sisters-in-law, and anyone (other than domestic employees) who shares the director s home.

We disclose whether all of a director s relationships with PNC meet our categorical standards. If a director has a relationship that would be deemed non-material under a categorical standard, but crosses one of the bright-line independence tests, the bright-line test governs and the director will not be treated as independent.

Our Board s Independence Determinations. At its meeting on February 10, 2010, the Board made an independence determination for each of our 17 director nominees. Each nominee currently serves as a director.

In making these determinations, our Board relied on the findings and recommendations made by the Nominating and Governance Committee. The Board considered relevant facts and circumstances when making these determinations. Our Board based the independence decisions on information known as of February 10, 2010. The Nominating and Governance Committee and Board will consider any additional relevant information that may impact independence.

Non-Independent Directors. Our Board affirmatively determined that Mr. Rohr is the only non-independent director. He meets the NYSE s bright-line relationship test as an executive officer of PNC.

Independent Directors Relationships Meeting Our Categorical Standards. Our Board affirmatively determined that each of the directors listed below has no material relationship with PNC. All of these directors have relationships covered by the categorical standards, and each of those relationships meet the categorical standards. These relationships could include direct relationships or relationships as a partner, shareholder or officer of an organization that has a relationship with PNC. As a result, our Board has affirmatively determined that each of these directors is independent under the NYSE s corporate governance rules:

Charles E. Bunch

Paul W. Chellgren

Robert N. Clay

Kay Coles James

Richard B. Kelson

Bruce C. Lindsay Anthony A. Massaro Jane G. Pepper Donald J. Shepard Lorene K. Steffes Dennis F. Strigl Stephen G. Thieke Thomas J. Usher George H. Walls, Jr. Helge H. Wehmeier

Independent Directors Relationships Not Meeting Our Categorical Standards. Richard O. Berndt is the Managing Partner of the law firm of Gallagher Evelius & Jones LLP. This firm provided legal services in each of the last three years to PNC and a predecessor corporation, Mercantile Bankshares Corporation.

These services do not meet our categorical standards of independence for services provided in the ordinary course of business, as they involve the provision of legal services from a firm where a director is a partner or managing member.

In reviewing the relationship, however, the Board concluded that Mr. Berndt is independent, noting:

The annual fees earned by the firm from its representation of PNC (and Mercantile) in each of the last three years were less than 2% of the firm s revenues. For 2007, 2008 and 2009, the total fees received by the firm were approximately \$306,000, \$266,000 and \$204,000, respectively.

The legal services involved ordinary course banking transactions and not strategic issues or advice.

Mr. Berndt did not participate actively in the legal services provided by his firm to PNC or Mercantile.

Effective January 1, 2010, Mr. Berndt committed that his law firm would not provide any future services to PNC.

Transactions with Directors

The following summarizes our transactions with directors and their affiliated entities. No transaction fails the NYSE s bright-line test for independence. Except as discussed above with respect to Mr. Berndt, all of these transactions meet our categorical standards of independence.

Categorical Standards of Independence. For the categorical standards of independence that we have adopted, our non-employee directors who served at any time during 2009 had the following relationships with PNC or its subsidiaries, in the ordinary course of business:

	General Banking Accounts and Services	Credit Relationships	Other Corporate Products and Services	Charitable Contributions
Name	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)
Richard O. Berndt Charles E. Bunch				
Paul W. Chellgren				
Robert N. Clay				
George A. Davidson*				
Kay Coles James				
Richard B. Kelson				
Bruce C. Lindsay				
Anthony A. Massaro				
Jane G. Pepper				
Donald J. Shepard				
Lorene K. Steffes				
Dennis F. Strigl				
Stephen G. Thieke Thomas J. Usher				
George H. Walls, Jr.				
Helge H. Wehmeier				
* On April 28, 2009, George A. Davidson, Jr. retired as a direct management.	or of PNC. The B	oard had previously affirm	ned his independen	ce from PNC

This chart reflects relationships between PNC and the director, an immediate family member, or a company or charitable organization of which the director or an immediate family member is a partner, shareholder, officer, employee, or director. The companies or charitable organizations affiliated with a director do not include entities that have not been affiliated with the director in the last three fiscal years.

(1) Includes deposit accounts, wealth management products, or insurance products. May include accounts and products provided to the director personally, or to an entity affiliated with the director.

(2) Includes personal extensions of credit, including mortgages or home equity loans, as well as credit and credit-related products to entities affiliated with the director.

(3) Includes other products or services provided to entities affiliated with the director, which may include treasury management or capital markets products.

(4) Includes both charitable contributions made to entities affiliated with directors, as well as matching gifts provided to charities personally supported by the director.

Table of Contents

Customer Relationships. We provide financial services to most of our directors. We also provide financial services to certain immediate family members and affiliated entities. We offer these services in the ordinary course of our business. We provide the services on substantially the same terms and conditions, including price, as we provide to other similarly situated customers.

We also extend credit to certain directors, immediate family members and affiliated entities. Federal banking law (Regulation O) governs these extensions of credit. We discuss the impact of Regulation O and our process for managing these extensions on credit on pages 35-36.

Business Relationships. We also enter into other business relationships with entities affiliated with our directors or their immediate family members. These relationships are in the ordinary course of business, and include the following:

Mr. Berndt is the Managing Partner of the law firm of Gallagher Evelius & Jones LLP. This law firm provided legal services to PNC and its predecessor, Mercantile Bankshares Corporation, which we acquired in 2007. The law firm provided limited legal services to PNC in 2009 and Mr. Berndt has committed that his firm will cease to provide such services to PNC effective January 1, 2010, as described on page 31.

In 2009, Mr. Strigl was the President and Chief Operating Officer of Verizon Communications, which provides certain telecommunications services to us. These services are provided to us in the ordinary course of business at rates and fees applicable to similarly situated customers. Mr. Strigl retired from Verizon at the end of 2009.

Mr. Thieke is a director of RiskMetrics Group, Inc. We use services from RiskMetrics or its subsidiaries from time to time. These services are provided to us in the ordinary course of business at rates and fees applicable to similarly situated customers.

Certain Charitable Contributions. Ms. Pepper is the President of the Pennsylvania Horticultural Society (PHS). Since 1992, PNC has supported the Philadelphia Flower Show, an annual exhibition produced by the PHS. Our annual sponsorship amount does not exceed the dollar thresholds described in our categorical standards.

In 2009, Ms. Pepper announced her retirement as the President of PHS, which will take effect on June 1, 2010.

Apart from the contribution to the PHS, we make contributions to charitable organizations where our directors serve as directors or trustees, but not as executive officers. We also match charitable contributions made by our directors. We describe this matching gift program on page 23.

Family Relationships

No family relationship exists between any of our directors or executive officers and any of our other directors or executive officers. There are family relationships between executive officers and some of the approximately 56,000 PNC employees. These employees participate in

compensation and incentive plans or arrangements on the same basis as other similarly situated employees.

Norma Hajduk, a Senior Vice President and National Sales Manager of a subsidiary of PNC Bank, National Association, is the sister of Timothy G. Shack, Vice Chairman of PNC. For 2009, she received a base salary of \$190,000 and an annual incentive award (payable in 2010) of \$211,280. In addition, during 2009, she received 1,200 options and 560 restricted shares of our common stock.

Indemnification and Advancement of Costs

We indemnify directors, officers and, in some cases, employees and agents, against certain liabilities. The covered person may have incurred a liability as a result of service on our behalf or at our request. On behalf of a covered person, we may also advance the costs of certain claims or proceedings. If we advance costs to a person who is not entitled to receive indemnification, the person agrees to repay us. The insurance policies we maintain for our directors and executive officers also provide coverage against certain liabilities.

The indemnification provisions, the advancement of costs, and our insurance coverage may provide benefits to our directors and executive officers. During 2009, we advanced costs with respect to pending litigation against us on behalf of two executive officers, including our CEO, who were also named as defendants. We did not advance costs in 2009 on behalf of any non-management director, or any former director or executive officer.

Related Person Transactions Policies and Procedures

SEC regulations require disclosure of our related person transactions policies and procedures. In this regard, our principal policies and procedures are contained in our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and the related ethics policies that provide more detailed rules and guidance supporting the code. The code is described in more detail on page 10.

In addition, we have policies and procedures to support our compliance with Regulation O, the federal banking regulation relating to the extensions of credit by our subsidiary banks to insiders. For these purposes, insiders include our directors, executive officers and entities in which the individuals have specific control positions.

We believe that these policies and procedures provide appropriate levels of control and monitoring of the types of related person transactions that are likely to arise in our business. We describe the policies and procedures in more detail below.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics contains several provisions that regulate related person transactions. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applies generally to all employees, including executive officers, and to our directors.

Doing Business with PNC. An employee or an immediate family member may want to engage in a business arrangement, such as the sale or lease of property or the provision of services, with PNC. For these transactions, we require prior approval from a supervisor and our Corporate Ethics Office.

Table of Contents

Financial Services to Employees. Our employees and their extended families are encouraged to use PNC for their personal financial services. Any services must be provided on the same terms as are available to the general public, all employees in a market or business, or all similarly situated employees.

Transacting PNC Business. We prohibit directors and employees from transacting business on behalf of PNC with a supplier or customer in which the director, employee, or extended family member has a significant personal or financial interest. We also prohibit directors and employees from transacting business on behalf of PNC with respect to their own accounts, extended family member accounts, or accounts for anyone whose close relationship may reasonably be viewed as creating a conflict of interest. Our phrase extended family member is similar to the SEC s definition of immediate family member in Item 404(a) of Regulation S-K. We have established procedures in certain of our businesses to permit employees to transact business with family members, subject to appropriate oversight and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including Regulation O.

We employ relatives of executive officers and may employ relatives of directors, in some cases under circumstances that constitute related person transactions. *See Family Relationships* on pages 33-34. We track the employment and compensation of relatives of executive officers and directors. We have policies that restrict special treatment in the hiring or compensation of a relative of an executive officer or director. Our employment of a director s relative would be a factor in the determination of the director s independence under NYSE rules and our categorical standards for director independence. See *Director and Executive Officer Relationships Director Independence*, which begins on page 27.

Under the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, employees may generally request waivers or exceptions from our Corporate Ethics Office. The Corporate Ethics Office may refer specific requests to a committee of senior managers that provides management oversight of ethics-related issues. This management-level committee may, in turn, refer requests to the full Board or any Board committee, including the Board s Audit Committee, which provides Board-level oversight of ethics-related issues. In the case of directors and executive officers, any proposed waiver or exception must be approved by both the Corporate Ethics Office and the Audit Committee. In 2009, no directors or executive officers requested an exemption under any of the provisions described above.

Regulation O Policies and Procedures. We design policies and procedures to help ensure our compliance with Regulation O. This regulation imposes various conditions on a bank s extension of credit to directors and certain officers. Any extensions of credit must comply with our own Regulation O policies and procedures. This includes a separate review by our designated Regulation O credit officer. A director can only meet our categorical standards of independence for extensions of credit if the credit complied with Regulation O at the time PNC extended it.

Our Regulation O policies and procedures require:

Extensions of credit to covered individuals or entities must be made on substantially the same terms (including interest rates and collateral) as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with those who are not covered. For credit extensions under a benefit or compensatory program widely available to all employees, we may not give preference to any covered individual.

The covered extension of credit be made following credit underwriting procedures no less stringent than those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with non-covered individuals or entities. The extension of credit may not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features.

The amount of covered extensions of credit do not exceed individual and aggregate lending limits, depending on the identity of the borrower and the nature of the loan.

Our subsidiary bank, PNC Bank, National Association, designates a Regulation O Credit Officer to review extensions of credit to determine our compliance with these policies. If an extension of credit would result in an aggregate credit extension of more than \$500,000, the bank s Board of Directors must approve it. The bank s Board of Directors receives a report of all extensions of credit made to executive officers under Regulation O.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF DIRECTORS,

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS

The table below shows the common stock ownership of our directors and officers. We include beneficial ownership of common stock as of February 12, 2010 for each director, each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table on page 99, and all directors and executive officers as a group. Unless we otherwise note, each person exercises sole voting and investment power over these shares of common stock.

We determine the number of shares in the Common Stock Ownership column as beneficially owned by each director and executive officer pursuant to SEC regulations. This information does not necessarily indicate beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Beneficial ownership includes any shares of common stock as to which the individual has sole or shared voting power or investment power. We also include any shares of common stock that the individual has the right to acquire within 60 days of February 12, 2010 through the exercise of any option, warrant or right.

	Common Stock Ownership*
Name	(Number of Shares)
Non-Employee Directors:	
Richard O. Berndt	16,749
Charles E. Bunch	281
Paul W. Chellgren	37,592 ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾⁽³⁾
Robert N. Clay	12,361 ⁽⁴⁾⁽⁵⁾
Kay Coles James	264
Richard B. Kelson	$2,624^{(6)}$
Bruce C. Lindsay	2,668
Anthony A. Massaro	8,830 ⁽³⁾⁽⁷⁾⁽⁸⁾
Jane G. Pepper	16,840 ⁽²⁾
Donald J. Shepard	8,967
Lorene K. Steffes	16,041 ⁽²⁾⁽¹³⁾
Dennis F. Strigl	15,714 ⁽²⁾
Stephen G. Thieke	7,661 ⁽⁷⁾⁽¹³⁾
Thomas J. Usher	21,139 ⁽²⁾⁽¹³⁾
George H. Walls, Jr.	365
Helge H. Wehmeier	34,826 ⁽²⁾
Named Executive Officers:	
William S. Demchak	816,893 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹⁰⁾⁽¹³⁾⁽¹⁴⁾
Joseph C. Guyaux	728,643 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹⁰⁾⁽¹¹⁾
Richard J. Johnson	281,520 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹⁰⁾
James E. Rohr	2,639,597 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹⁰⁾⁽¹²⁾
Timothy G. Shack	574,052 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹³⁾
Six remaining executive officers	1,678,945 ⁽⁹⁾⁽¹⁰⁾⁽¹³⁾⁽¹⁵⁾
Directors and Executive Officers as a Group	(16)
(27 persons):	6,922,572 ⁽¹⁶⁾
* As of February 12, 2010, there were 517,509,690 s	

As of February 12, 2010, there were 517,509,690 shares of PNC common stock issued and outstanding. The number of shares of common stock held by each individual is less than 1% of the outstanding shares of common stock; the total number of shares of common stock held by the group is approximately 1.3% of the class. If employee or director stock options were exercisable within 60 days of February 12, 2010, we added those numbers to the total of shares issued and outstanding. No director or executive officer beneficially owns shares of PNC preferred stock.

(1) Includes shares held in the PNC Bank, Kentucky Deferred Compensation Plan.

(2) Includes 14,000 shares subject to non-employee director non-statutory exercisable stock options.

- (3) Includes shares owned by spouse.
- (4) Includes 8,000 shares subject to non-employee director non-statutory exercisable stock options.
- (5) Includes 3,653 shares held as custodian.
- (6) Includes 2,000 shares subject to non-employee-director non-statutory exercisable stock options.
- (7) Includes 6,000 shares subject to non-employee director non-statutory exercisable stock options.
- (8) Includes 1,000 shares held in a limited partnership.
- (9) Includes shares subject to employee non-statutory stock options held by the executive officers and exercisable as of April 11, 2010. The shares subject to those options are as follows: Mr. Rohr (1,951,454); Mr. Johnson (199,033); Mr. Demchak (509,072); Mr. Guyaux (589,044); and Mr. Shack (464,119). The aggregate number of shares subject to such options for the remaining six executive officers is 1,272,697.
- (10) Includes shares held in our ISP.
- (11) Includes 19 shares held indirectly as custodian for grandchild.
- (12) Includes 516 shares held indirectly as custodian for daughter, 58,200 shares owned by spouse, 53,555 shares held as assets of a grantor retained annuity trust; and 21,320 shares held in trust for daughter.
- (13) Includes shares held jointly with spouse.
- (14) Includes 50,000 shares held as assets of a grantor retained annuity trust.
- (15) Includes, for an executive officer not named in the table, 287 shares held directly or indirectly as custodian or trustee, and, for another executive officer, six shares held directly by the executive officer s daughter, as to which six shares the individual disclaims beneficial ownership.
- (16) Includes, for ten non-employee directors, an aggregate total of 106,000 shares subject to non-employee director non-statutory exercisable stock options. Also includes the text of footnotes (1) through (15).

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners. We know that the following entity owns at least five percent of our common stock. We base our knowledge on a review, as of February 12, 2010, of Schedules 13D and 13G filed with the SEC. The numbers shown on the table below represent holdings as of December 31, 2009 and should be interpreted in light of the related footnotes.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner	Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership	Percent of Class
FMR LLC(1)	45,916,518(1)(2)	9.954%
82 Devonshire Street		
Boston, Massachusetts 02109		

- (1) According to the Schedule 13G (Amendment No. 2) filed by FMR LLC with the SEC on February 12, 2010, the shares of our common stock are beneficially owned by Fidelity Management & Research Company (42,381,771 shares), Strategic Advisers, Inc. (4,419 shares), Pyramis Global Advisors, LLC (238,910 shares), Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company (836,053 shares), each of which are direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of FMR LLC, and FIL Limited (2,455,365 shares).
- (2) FMR LLC and FIL Limited are of the view that they are not acting as a group for purposes of Section 13(d) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and that they are not otherwise required to attribute to each other the beneficial ownership of securities beneficially owned by the other entity within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 promulgated under that Act. They are of the view that the shares held by the other corporation need not be aggregated for purposes of Section 13(d). However, FMR LLC made the filing on a voluntary basis as if all of the shares were beneficially owned by FMR LLC and FIL on a joint basis.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, executive officers and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities to file with us, the SEC and the NYSE initial reports of ownership and reports in changes in ownership of any PNC equity securities. In 2009, two of our directors, Paul W. Chellgren and Anthony A. Massaro, received cash distributions in connection with prior elections made under our Directors Deferred Compensation Plan. Due to an administrative error on our part, neither director received the distribution in accordance with their election, which resulted in late Form 4 filings for both directors. In addition, we failed to file a Form 4 on a timely basis on behalf of two executive officers (Robert Q. Reilly and Thomas K. Whitford), in connection with the acquisition of phantom stock units under our Supplemental Incentive Savings Plan and Deferred Compensation Plan. In making this statement, we have relied in part on the written representations of our current non-employee directors and our current and certain former executive officers and on copies of the reports provided to us.

ITEM 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors determines the number of directors to nominate for election each year. The PNC By-Laws contemplate a Board that ranges in size from five to 36 directors. Acting on the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee, our Board has fixed the number of directors to be elected at the 2010 annual meeting at 17.

The Board has nominated the persons named on pages 43 to 56 for election as directors, to hold office until the next annual meeting of shareholders and the election and qualification of their successors. All of our nominees are currently directors.

Your proxy, unless you direct otherwise, will be voted FOR all of the nominees named on pages 43 to 56.

Each nominee consents to being named in this proxy statement and to serve if elected. Our Board of Directors has no reason to believe that any nominee will be unavailable or unable to serve as a director. If, for any reason, a nominee is unavailable or unable to serve, we will vote your proxy in accordance with the recommendation of our Board.

Beginning on page 43, we include the following information (as of the record date) for each of the nominees for election:

their names and ages;

the years they first became directors of PNC;

their principal occupations and public company directorships over the past five years; and

a brief discussion of the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that led to our Board s conclusion that the person should serve as a director, in light of our business and structure.

In addition to the information we include on the following pages, this proxy statement contains other important information related to our directors. We discuss our Board s leadership structure and how our Board and its Committees operate. We discuss related person transactions, the nature of the relationships between our directors, affiliated entities, and PNC, and how our Board analyzes whether a director is independent from PNC management. We explain how we pay directors and how the equity ownership in PNC helps to align our Board, executive management, and long-term shareholders. Please see the following sections for more details on these topics:

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

Corporate Governance at PNC (page 7)

Director and Executive Officer Relationships (page 27)

Board Committees (page 11)

Board Meetings in 2009 (page 20)

Board Compensation in 2009 (page 21)

Security Ownership of Directors, Executive Officers and Certain Beneficial Owners (page 37)

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR each of the nominees listed on pages 43-56.

Director Name Richard O. Berndt	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Berndt is the Managing Partner of Gallagher Evelius & Jones LLP, a law firm based in Baltimore, Maryland.
Age: 67		Mr. Berndt received an undergraduate degree from Villanova University, a law degree from the University of Maryland School of Law, and a master s degree from Johns Hopkins University.
Director Since 2007 Risk Committee		Mr. Berndt joined our Board following PNC s acquisition of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation. He joined the Mercantile Board of Directors in 1978.
		Our Board values Mr. Berndt s experience on the Board of a public company in the banking business. In addition, his involvement in the Baltimore community provides insights into a relatively new and growing market for PNC. Mr. Berndt s background also gives him an understanding of legal issues, although he does not serve us in a legal capacity and does not provide legal advice to PNC.
	Public Company Directorships	Municipal Mortgage & Equity, LLC (until 2010) Mercantile Bankshares Corporation (until 2007)
Charles E. Bunch	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Mr. Bunch is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of PPG Industries, Inc., a Pittsburgh-based global supplier of paints, coatings, optical products, specialty materials, chemicals, glass and fiber glass.
Age: 60		Mr. Bunch received an undergraduate degree from Georgetown University and a master s degree in business administration from Harvard University.
Director Since 2007		
Nominating and Governance Committee	Public Company	Mr. Bunch s service as a public company CEO, his extensive management and finance experience and his involvement in the Pittsburgh community add significant value to our Board. In addition, Mr. Bunch brings regulatory and banking industry experience to our Board as he formerly served as a Director and the Chairman of the Federal Reserve Bank of Cleveland, our principal banking regulator. H.J. Heinz Company
Personnel and Compensation	Directorships	PPG Industries, Inc.
Committee		

Director Name Paul W. Chellgren	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Chellgren is an Operating Partner with Snow Phipps Group, LLC, a New York City-based private equity firm. In 2002, he retired as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Ashland, Inc., a provider of specialty chemical products, services and solutions, headquartered in Ashland, Kentucky. He also served as the Chief Financial Officer of Ashland.
Age: 67 Director Since 1995		Mr. Chellgren received an undergraduate degree from the University of Kentucky, a master s degree in business administration from Harvard University, and a diploma in Developmental Economics from Oxford University.
Chairman, Audit Committee Executive Committee Personnel and Compensation Committee	Public Company Directorships	Mr. Chellgren s service as a public company CFO and his designation as an audit committee financial expert assist the Board in its oversight of financial and accounting issues. This financial background provides strong leadership of our Audit Committee, which he chairs. Our Board also values his extensive executive management experience, including as a CEO of a public company, and his involvement in the southern Ohio and northern Kentucky communities that we serve. None
Robert N. Clay	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Mr. Clay is the Founder and Owner of Three Chimneys Farm, a Kentucky-based company that breeds thoroughbred horses. Before founding Three Chimneys Farm, Mr. Clay was the President of Top Yield Industries, an agricultural company that was later acquired by Cargill, Inc.
Age: 63 Director Since 1987		Mr. Clay received an undergraduate degree from the College of William and Mary.
Nominating and Governance Committee	Public Company Directorships	Mr. Clay s entrepreneurial background and management expertise provide our Board with important qualities and insights, and his tenure as a director has afforded our Board a valuable perspective through various business cycles. He is also active in the Kentucky communities that PNC serves. None

Director Name Kay Coles James	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Ms. James is President and Founder of The Gloucester Institute, a non-profit organization that trains and nurtures leaders in the African-American community.
Age: 60 Director Since 2006		From 2001 to 2006, she served as director of the U.S. Office of Personnel Management, where she was President George W. Bush s principal human resources advisor.
Personnel and Compensation Committee		She has also provided consulting services as a former Senior Partner in The J.C. Watts Companies and a former Senior Executive Vice President with MZM, Inc.
		Ms. James received an undergraduate degree from Hampton University.
		Having supervised the management of thousands of federal employees, Ms. James understands large-scale human resources operations and compensation matters. Our Board values these senior-level federal government and regulatory experiences, as well as her leadership of a non-profit organization in the Greater Washington, D.C. area, a significant market for PNC.
	Public Company Directorships	AMERIGROUP Corporation

Director Name Richard B. Kelson	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Kelson is a private equity investor and advisor to middle-market companies. He is the Chairman and CEO of ServCo, LLC, a strategic sourcing and supply chain management company. He has also served as an Operating Advisor with Pegasus Capital Advisors, L.P., a private equity fund manager.
Age: 63 Director Since 2002 Audit Committee		Mr. Kelson retired in 2006 as Chairman s Counsel for Alcoa, a leader in the production and management of primary aluminum, fabricated aluminum and alumina. At Alcoa, he served as a member of the executive council, the senior leadership group for the company. From 1994 to 1997, Mr. Kelson served as Alcoa s General Counsel. From 1997 to 2006, he served as Alcoa s Chief Financial Officer.
Personnel and Compensation Committee		Mr. Kelson received an undergraduate degree from the University of Pennsylvania, and a law degree from the University of Pittsburgh.
	Public Company Directorships	As with Mr. Chellgren, Mr. Kelson s service as a public company CFO and his designation as an audit committee financial expert assist the Board and Audit Committee with the oversight of financial and accounting issues. The Board also values Mr. Kelson s executive management experience and his background as a public company general counsel, although he does not serve in a legal capacity or provide legal advice to PNC or our Board. Commercial Metals Company
		MeadWestvaco Corp.

Lighting Science Group Corporation (until 2010)

Director Name Bruce C. Lindsay	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Lindsay is a private equity investor and Chairman and Managing Member of 2117 Associates, LLC, a business consulting firm.
Age: 68 Director Since 1995		For the majority of his professional life, Mr. Lindsay has invested in privately held companies. He has also served as the CEO of various operating companies and has been a director of many companies as well. Since 1997, he has served as a senior advisor to CMS Companies, a private investment firm, and advises several companies in that capacity.
Audit Committee		Mr. Lindsay received an undergraduate degree from Yale University and a master s degree in business administration from the University of Chicago.
Risk Committee	Public Company Directorships	Our Board values Mr. Lindsay s managerial, operational, and investing experience and the broad array of companies where he has served in an executive capacity. The Board believes that these skills assist in the oversight of PNC management and give him insights into the operations of our company. Mr. Lindsay is also active in the Philadelphia community, a significant market for PNC. None

Director Name		Biographical Information
Anthony A. Massaro	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Mr. Massaro is the retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc., a leader in the design, development and manufacture of welding products and cutting equipment. He retired as CEO in April 2005 and as Chairman in October 2005.
Age: 65 Director Since 2002		Previously, Mr. Massaro served as a Group President of Westinghouse Electric Corporation, and in a variety of other executive positions at Westinghouse.
Nominating and Governance Committee		Mr. Massaro received an undergraduate degree from the University of Pittsburgh.
Risk Committee	Public Company Directorships	Mr. Massaro s service as the CEO of a large public company, and his experience in a number of other senior management positions, assist our Board s oversight of management and issues generally facing public companies. Commercial Metals Company

Director Name Jane G. Pepper	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Ms. Pepper is the President of the Pennsylvania Horticultural Society (PHS), a non-profit organization, and America s first horticultural society.
Age: 64		Ms. Pepper received an undergraduate degree from the University of Delaware.
Director Since 1997 Risk Committee		Ms. Pepper brings a diverse set of experiences to our Board, beginning with her management experience at the PHS. For 30 years, Ms. Pepper has led this Philadelphia-based organization, supervising over 100 employees, and executing a strategic plan with a vision of sustainability and community impact. Beyond this leadership, the Board appreciates her insights as PNC continues to expand our own environmentally conscious initiatives.
	Public Company Directorships	Ms. Pepper brings additional regulatory and banking industry experience to our Board, having formerly served as a director and the Chairwoman of the Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia. None

49

Table of Contents

Table	of	Contents

Director Name James E. Rohr	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Rohr is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of PNC. He joined the company in 1972.
Age: 61		Mr. Rohr received an undergraduate degree from the University of Notre Dame and a master s degree in business administration from The Ohio State University.
Director Since 1990		
Executive Committee		The Board believes that the current CEO should also serve as a director. Under the leadership structure discussed elsewhere in this proxy statement, a CEO-director acts as a liaison between directors and management, and assists the Board in its oversight of the company. Mr. Rohr s breadth of experiences, tenure and strong leadership provide unparalleled insights into the history, current operation, and strategic vision of PNC.
	Public Company Directorships	Allegheny Technologies Incorporated
Risk Committee	Directorships	BlackRock, Inc.*
		EQT Corporation
		* PNC maintains an equity stake in BlackRock, Inc. As of December 31, 2009, PNC s equity interest in BlackRock was approximately 33%. In connection with this equity ownership, PNC is entitled to appoint two individuals to BlackRock s Board of

50

Directors. Mr. Rohr is one of the two PNC-appointed representatives.

Director Name		Biographical Information
Donald J. Shepard	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Mr. Shepard is the retired Chairman of the Executive Board and Chief Executive Officer of AEGON N.V., a large life insurance and pension company.
Age: 63		Mr. Shepard received a master s degree in business administration from the University of Chicago.
Director Since 2007		
Audit Committee		Mr. Shepard joined our Board following PNC s acquisition of Mercantile Bankshares Corporation. He joined the Mercantile Board of Directors in 1992.
Risk Committee		Mr. Shepard s service as the CEO of a large, international public company, particularly a company in the financial services sector, gives him insights into many issues facing PNC, and supports the Board s ability to oversee complex and dynamic issues. Mr. Shepard s duties and experiences at AEGON also assist our Board with its oversight of financial and risk issues. Our Board also values Mr. Shepard s experience on the Board of a public company in the banking business and his involvement in the Baltimore community.
	Public Company Directorships	CSX Corporation
	_	The Travelers Companies, Inc.
		Mercantile Bankshares Corporation (until 2007)
		51

Director Name Lorene K. Steffes	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Ms. Steffes is an independent business advisor with executive, business management and technical expertise in the telecommunications and information technology industries. She formerly served as Vice President and General Manager, Global Electronics Industry, for IBM. Ms. Steffes also served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Transarc Corporation, a software development firm, which was later acquired by IBM.
Age: 64		
Director Since 2000		Ms. Steffes received undergraduate and master s degrees from Northern Illinois University.
Risk Committee		Our Board values Ms. Steffes s managerial experiences throughout the technology industry, including as a chief executive. Her background assists the Board in its oversight of technological issues, which have become increasingly important for large, complex banking organizations.
	Public Company Directorships	Our Board values Ms. Steffes s wide array of experiences in the technology industry and her understanding of operational and technological issues. This background informs our Board s general oversight of issues related to technology. RadiSys Corporation

Table of Co	ontents
-------------	---------

Director Name Dennis F. Strigl	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Strigl is the retired President and Chief Operating Officer of Verizon Communications Inc., one of the world s leading providers of communications services, where he served until December 2009. Prior to that, he was the President and Chief Executive Officer of Verizon Wireless, a joint venture controlled by Verizon.
Age: 63 Director Since 2001		Mr. Strigl received an undergraduate degree from Canisius College and a master s degree in business administration from Fairleigh Dickinson University.
Executive Committee Nominating and Governance Committee	Public Company Directorships	Our Board values Mr. Strigl s service as a senior executive at a large public company, and his former executive management expertise as the CEO of Verizon Wireless. His management of a large workforce at Verizon informs his leadership of our Personnel and Compensation Committee and gives him a strong understanding of human resources and compensation matters. Mr. Strigl s additional responsibility for internal functional services, such as finance and real estate, adds depth and experience to the Board s ability to oversee the operations of our company. ANADIGICS, Inc. (until 2007; 2009-Present)
Chairman, Personnel and Compensation Committee	Directorships	Eastman Kodak Company

Director Name Stephen G. Thieke	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Thieke is the retired Chairman of the Risk Management Committee of J.P. Morgan, a financial institution. While at J.P. Morgan, he served in a variety of senior management positions, including head of the Corporate Risk Management Group.
Age: 63 Director Since 2002		Before joining J.P. Morgan, Mr. Thieke worked for 20 years at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, where he was Executive Vice President and head of the Credit and Capital Markets Group.
Executive Committee		Mr. Thieke also served as a member of the Board of Directors for the Financial Services Authority of the U.K.
Chairman, Risk Committee		Mr. Thieke received an undergraduate degree from Manhattan College.
		Mr. Thieke s broad, extensive experience in banking and risk management, coupled with his background as a senior financial regulator, provides the Board with an invaluable resource in its oversight of risk. Since its inception, Mr. Thieke has served as the Chairman of the Risk Committee.
	Public Company Directorships	RiskMetrics Group, Inc.

Director Name Thomas J. Usher	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information Mr. Usher is the non-executive Chairman of Marathon Oil Corporation, an integrated international energy company. He formerly served as the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of United States Steel Corporation, an integrated international steel producer, until his retirement in 2004. He served as the Chairman of the Board of U.S. Steel until 2006.
Age: 67 Director Since 1992		Mr. Usher received an undergraduate degree, master s degree, and Ph.D. from the University of Pittsburgh.
Presiding Director		
Chairman, Executive Committee		Our Board values Mr. Usher s extensive executive management experience, including as the CEO of a public company, and significant involvement throughout the Pittsburgh community. In his duties as the Board s Presiding Director, and as Chairman of the Nominating and Governance Committee, Mr. Usher can draw from a diverse set of leadership experiences and governance perspectives at large public companies, having served as a CEO, a non-executive Chairman, and an independent director.
Chairman, Nominating and Governance Committee		
		H.J. Heinz Company
		Marathon Oil Corporation
Personnel and	Public Company	PPG Industries, Inc.
Compensation Committee	Directorships	United States Steel Corporation (until 2005)

Director Name George H. Walls, Jr.	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Biographical Information General Walls was the Chief Deputy Auditor for the State of North Carolina from 2001 to 2004. His responsibilities included oversight of the statewide operations of auditors, administrative and support staff.
Age: 67		General Walls served on active duty for over 28 years in the United States Marine Corps, retiring at the rank of Brigadier General in 1993.
Director Since 2006 Audit Committee		General Walls received an undergraduate degree from West Chester State College and a master s degree from North Carolina Central University.
		Our Board values the financial and managerial experiences that General Walls brings to his duties as a director, both as the former Chief Deputy Auditor of North Carolina, and as displayed by the missions he led during an esteemed military career. These experiences show a strong fiscal management and operations experience, as well as valuable perspectives in human resources and internal audit.
	Public Company Directorships	Lincoln Electric Holdings, Inc.
Helge H. Wehmeier	Experience, Qualifications, Attributes, or Skills	Mr. Wehmeier retired as the Vice Chairman of Bayer Corporation in 2004. He had served in that capacity since 2002, and was President and Chief Executive Officer since 1991. Bayer Corporation is the U.S. subsidiary of Bayer Group of Germany, an international life sciences, polymers and specialty chemicals company.
Age: 67 Director Since 1992		Mr. Wehmeier is an alumnus of the International Management Development Institute in Lausanne, Switzerland and the Institut European d Administration des Affaires in Fontainebleau, France.
Nominating and Governance Committee		Our Board values Mr. Wehmeier s executive management experience and, in particular, his extensive experiences with merger integration activities at Bayer, which contributes to the Board s oversight of our operations and acquisition integrations.
	Public Company Directorships	Owens-Illinois, Inc. Terex Corporation (until 2010)

ITEM 2

RATIFICATION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE S SELECTION OF PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP AS THE INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 2010

Our Board's Audit Committee is composed entirely of directors who are independent as defined in the NYSE's corporate governance rules. Among other things, the Board has also determined that each committee member is financially literate and possesses accounting or related financial management expertise. The Board made these determinations in its business judgment, based on its interpretation of the NYSE's requirements for committee members.

Under the Audit Committee s charter, the committee is responsible for selecting PNC s independent auditors. The committee evaluates and monitors the auditors qualifications, performance and independence. This responsibility includes a review and evaluation of the lead audit partner. The committee also listens to the opinions of our General Auditor, who supervises the internal audit function, and other members of our management.

You can learn more about the committee s responsibilities with respect to the independent auditors in the committee s charter, which is posted on the corporate governance section of our corporate website at **www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**.

On February 10, 2010, the Audit Committee presented its conclusions regarding the independent auditors to our Board of Directors. Following this presentation, the Board voted unanimously to recommend that shareholders vote to ratify the Audit Committee s selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as PNC s independent registered public accounting firm for 2010.

The Audit Committee and Board have adopted a policy that if a majority of the votes cast at the annual meeting is against ratification, the committee will reconsider its selection of PwC. The committee will be under no obligation, however, to select new independent auditors. If the committee does select new independent auditors for 2010, we will not seek shareholder ratification of the committee s new selection.

Audit and Non-Audit Fees

At its meeting on February 9, 2009, our Audit Committee appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, to audit our consolidated financial statements for 2009, and our shareholders ratified it on April 28, 2009. We expect representatives of PwC to be available at the annual meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement and respond to appropriate questions.

In considering the nature of the services provided by our independent auditors, the Audit Committee determined that the services are compatible with the provision of independent audit services. The committee discussed these services with the independent auditors and our management to determine that they are permitted under the SEC rules and regulations concerning auditor independence.

The following table summarizes the total fees for professional services rendered by PwC to PNC for 2009 and 2008:

	2009	2008
Category	(in millions)	(in millions)
Audit Fees	\$ 16.1	\$ 12.1
Audit-Related Fees	\$ 4.5	\$ 2.8
Tax Fees	\$ 0.4	\$ 0.2
All Other Fees	\$ 0.2	\$ 0.2
Total Fees Billed	\$ 21.2	\$ 15.3

Audit Fees. These fees consisted primarily of the audit of PNC s annual consolidated financial statements, reviews of PNC s quarterly consolidated financial statements included in Form 10-Q filings, comfort letters and other services related to SEC matters, assistance with the implementation of new accounting pronouncements and related expenses.

Audit-Related Fees. These fees consisted primarily of SAS 70 reports and compliance reviews. The audit-related services were higher in 2009 as PwC issued certain SAS 70 reports in 2009 that were prepared by another audit firm during 2008.

Tax Fees. These fees were attributable to tax compliance services and international tax consulting.

All Other Fees. These fees primarily consisted of transaction-related services.

Procedures for Pre-Approving Audit and Permitted Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee is responsible for pre-approving audit and permitted non-audit services (such as tax) to be provided to us by our independent auditors. The Committee is given this responsibility to confirm that providing services will not impair our auditors independence. The Committee performs this function for us, our subsidiaries and our employee benefit plans.

The Committee s responsibility also includes pre-approval of the fees for such services (although SEC regulations do not require the pre-approval of fees) and the other terms of the engagement. The Committee may either pre-approve specific fees, or a methodology for determining fees.

Pre-approval may be general (categories of services) or specific (individual services). If the Committee pre-approves a general category of services, it will review and pre-approve the category at least every year. The Committee will be responsible for approving any fee or other compensation arrangements for services covered by a pre-approval of a general category of services.

The full Committee may exercise pre-approval authority, or the Chairman of the Committee may exercise the authority as required between meetings. The Committee may also delegate this authority, in whole or in part, to one or more Committee members. Any person exercising delegated authority will report on the pre-approvals at the next scheduled meeting of the Committee, which will be reflected in the meeting minutes. The Audit Committee may not delegate its pre-approval authority to any other person, including any member of our management or other PNC employee or agent.

The written request for pre-approval includes, at a minimum, a description of the nature of the engagement, the proposed fee for the services, and a statement that the provision of the services is consistent with SEC and other applicable rules on auditor independence. In reviewing a pre-approval request, the Committee or Chairman may request members of our management to provide their views on auditor independence questions.

The Audit Committee may amend these procedures from time to time.

Report of the Audit Committee

The PNC Board of Directors has appointed an Audit Committee composed of five directors, each of whom is independent as defined in the New York Stock Exchange listing standards. Acting on the recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee, the Board of Directors has determined that each of Paul W. Chellgren and Richard B. Kelson is an audit committee financial expert, as that term is defined in Securities and Exchange Commission rules.

The Board of Directors has approved a written charter for the Audit Committee. A copy of that charter, as approved and amended by the Board on February 10, 2010, is available on PNC s website a**www.pnc.com/corporategovernance**. The Audit Committee s job is one of oversight, as set forth in its charter. It is not the duty of the Audit Committee to prepare PNC s consolidated financial statements, to plan or conduct audits, or to determine that PNC s financial statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. PNC s management is responsible for preparing PNC s consolidated financial statements and for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. PNC s management is also responsible for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. In addition, the independent auditors are responsible for the audit of PNC s consolidated financial statements and the audit of management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. In addition, the independent auditors are responsible for the audit of proventing as of December 31, 2009.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed PNC s audited consolidated financial statements with management and with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC), PNC s

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2009. The Audit Committee has selected PwC as PNC s independent auditors for 2010, subject to shareholder ratification. A portion of the Audit Committee s review and discussion of PNC s audited consolidated financial statements with PwC occurred in private sessions, without PNC management present.

The Audit Committee has discussed with PwC the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended (AICPA Professional Standards, Vol. 1. AU Section 380), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board in Rule 3200T.

The Audit Committee has received from PwC the written statements required by applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding the independent accountant s communications with the Audit Committee concerning independence, and has discussed PwC s independence with representatives of PwC, and has considered the compatibility of non-audit services with the auditors independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited consolidated financial statements be included in PNC s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

Paul W. Chellgren, Chairman

Richard B. Kelson

Bruce C. Lindsay

Donald J. Shepard

George H. Walls, Jr.

In accordance with SEC regulations, the Report of the Audit Committee shall not be incorporated by reference into any of our future filings made under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or the Securities Act of 1933. The report is not deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the ratification of the Audit Committee s selection of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for 2010.

ITEM 3

ADVISORY VOTE ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

As discussed in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) section of this proxy statement, we believe that our compensation philosophy and principles, which emphasize performance-based compensation and the management of risk, strongly align the interests of our executives and our shareholders. We believe that our culture focuses executives on prudent risk management and appropriately rewards them for performance. Our compensation policies and procedures are described in detail in pages 68-90 of this proxy statement.

As a participant in the U.S. Treasury s TARP Capital Purchase Program in 2009, PNC was required to submit an advisory vote on executive compensation to our shareholders. Although PNC s repayment of the Treasury s TARP preferred stock investment has eliminated the requirement to include an advisory vote in this year s proxy statement, both management and our Board of Directors believe that we should present this proposal to our shareholders.

While the advisory nature of this vote will not bind our Board, it gives our shareholders an opportunity to vote on the compensation of our executives.

Upon the recommendation of our Board of Directors, we ask shareholders to consider the following resolution:

RESOLVED, that the holders of the common stock and the voting preferred stock of The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. (the Company), voting together as a single class, approve the compensation of the Company s five executives named in the Summary Compensation Table of the Company s Proxy Statement for the 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the Executive Compensation Tables and the related disclosure contained in the Proxy Statement.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the advisory resolution on executive compensation, as described above.

ITEM 4

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

We expect the following proposal to be presented by the Trowel Trades S&P 500 Index Fund at the Annual Meeting. We include the full text of the shareholder s proposal below, but do not independently verify the assertions made by the shareholder.

The Board of Directors has recommended a vote against this proposal for broader policy reasons, as described in more detail below. The address and security holdings of the shareholder will be supplied upon request to the Corporate Secretary at the address listed on page 7.

The text of the proposal follows.

* * * * * * * * * *

RESOLVED: that the shareholders of PNC Financial Services Group Inc. (the Company) urge the Board of Directors to seek shareholder approval of future severance agreements with senior executives that provide benefits in an amount exceeding 2.99 times the sum of the executives base salary plus bonus. Future severance agreements include employment agreements containing severance provisions, special retirement provisions and agreements renewing, modifying or extending existing such agreements. Benefits include lump-sum cash payments (including payments in lieu of medical and other benefits); the payment of any gross-up tax liability; the estimated present value of special retirement provisions; any stock or option awards that are awarded under any severance agreement; any prior stock or option awards as to which the executive s access is accelerated under the severance agreement; fringe benefits; and consulting fees (including reimbursable expenses) to be paid to the executive.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

In our opinion, severance agreements as described in this resolution, commonly known as golden parachutes , are excessive in light of the high levels of compensation enjoyed by senior executives at the Company and U.S. corporations in general.

We believe that requiring shareholder approval of such agreements may have the beneficial effect of insulating the Board of Directors from manipulation in the event a senior executive s employment must be terminated by the Company. Because it is not always practical to obtain prior shareholder approval, the Company would have the option if this proposal were implemented of seeking shareholder approval after the material terms of the agreement were agreed upon.

For those reasons, we urge shareholders to vote for this proposal.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN OPPOSITION TO THE PROPOSAL

After careful consideration, the Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote against the Trustee of the Trowel Trades S&P 500 Index Fund s proposal.

Our Board and our Board s Personnel and Compensation Committee have a long track record of responsible pay practices, including in relation to severance payments. In 2009, approximately 93% of the PNC shareholders casting votes approved our say on pay resolution relating to the compensation of our five named executive officers as described in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and the related disclosures contained in the 2009 Annual Meeting Proxy Statement. We believe that this demonstrates a strong vote of support for our executive compensation practices and the judgment of our Personnel and Compensation Committee.

As a practical matter, circumstances could arise in which the Personnel and Compensation Committee may deem it to be in the best interests of PNC and its shareholders to hire a particular individual in a situation where inducing the potential future executive requires us to offer severance protection. For example, if PNC wanted to retain a new senior executive from outside the company, convincing the executive to leave his or her employment could require us to provide a limited period of assured employment or compensation. In such a case, a responsible Personnel and Compensation Committee such as ours, which is composed entirely of independent directors, should be free to take such action without artificial constraints.

In this regard, we note that the limitations contained in the Proposal, by including not only cash severance, but other benefits such as the value of equity awards and even reimbursable business expenses, are far inferior to the separation benefits generally provided in the marketplace and would put PNC and its shareholders at a significant competitive disadvantage. While the Proposal suggests the possibility of seeking shareholder approval after the fact, we believe this process would be illusory at best. The potential for shareholders to reject a severance provision potentially many months after the fact would likely result in the promised severance benefits being viewed by a potential candidate as non-existent and thus worthless.

In addition, in the change in control context (described in more detail on pages 117-120), we will only make cash severance payments to an employee if there is both an acquisition of control of PNC by another company and termination of the employee s employment. The Personnel and Compensation Committee believes that our limited use of change-in-control agreements allows management to remain focused and objective during the negotiation of a potential change in control.

We believe that these change-in-control agreements are consistent with the practices of many other large companies. The Personnel and Compensation Committee periodically reviews such arrangements and believes them to be reasonable, appropriate and necessary to ensure an appropriate transition in case a change in control is in the best interests of PNC and its shareholders. In prior reviews, the Committee has asked its independent compensation consultant to analyze the competitiveness of these change-in-control arrangements.

In view of PNC s historical pay practices, our performance, especially when compared to peers, and the need to retain a valued and experienced leadership team, the policy

embodied in this Proposal should not limit the ability of the Personnel and Compensation Committee to exercise its judgment. This policy was not tailored to PNC instead, it was sent to numerous and disparate public companies regardless of the underlying factual circumstances at those companies. An obligation to limit the value or to obtain shareholder approval of an individual severance arrangement would severely inhibit our ability to recruit and retain talented executives. This proposal would restrict us from negotiating agreements that address the competitive market, our current needs, and the nature of employment situations.

The Board urges a vote AGAINST the approval of this proposal.

ITEM 5

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSAL

We expect the following proposal to be presented by the AFL-CIO Reserve Fund at the Annual Meeting. We include the full text of the shareholder s proposal below, but do not independently verify the assertions made by the shareholder.

The Board of Directors has recommended a vote against this proposal for broader policy reasons, as described in more detail below. The address and security holdings of the shareholder will be supplied upon request to the Corporate Secretary at the address listed on page 7.

The text of the proposal follows.

* * * * * * * * * *

RESOLVED: The stockholders of PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. (the Company) hereby request that the Board of Directors (Board) report annually on the extent to which the application of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code resulted in some or all of the remuneration of the Company s senior executives being non-deductible for federal income tax purposes, how much money the payment of non-deductible compensation is costing our Company in higher taxes, and the rationale for paying such non-deductible compensation to senior executives.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Our Company is one of the financial institutions that received financial assistance under the U. S. Treasury Department s Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP), which sought to inject liquidity into the financial system and to revive the credit markets. Some institutions have repaid these funds, but our Company had not at the time this proposal was submitted.

In the ongoing debate over the bailout of financial institutions, critics noted that these companies compensation programs created perverse incentives for executives to focus on short-term results, even if those results were ultimately not in the companies long-term interests. Congress responded by establishing standards restricting the executive compensation at institutions receiving TARP funds.

One such standard limits the tax-deductible compensation that a company receiving TARP funds may pay to each executive at \$500,000 per year. Companies receiving TARP funds may pay executives compensation in excess of \$500,000, but doing so may increase the company s income taxes and affect its bottom line and thus affect stockholders returns.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

We are concerned that, even with this standard, many financial institutions are reverting to the pre-crisis compensation practices for their Named Executive Officers (NEOs). A September 2009 study by the Institute for Policy Studies underscores this issue. The report found that the CEOs of the 20 banks that received the most TARP funds were paid 37% more than the average for top executives at S&P 500 companies the preceding year.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents

Although Congress permits TARP participants to pay non-deductible compensation to their executives, we believe that stockholders have the right to know the specific financial implications to the Company of a decision by the Board to pay senior executives more than the applicable deduction limit, as well as the Board s rationale for doing so.

On August 19, 2009, the Personnel and Compensation Committee of our Board approved increasing the annual base salary for CEO James Rohr to \$4.5 million from \$1 million in 2008 in the form of stock units and approved similar awards increasing the base pay for the other NEOs. Because the salary increase is effective July 1, Mr. Rohr and the other NEOs will receive only half of the stock awards in 2009. We request that the Board explain why it approved compensation in excess of the Internal Revenue Code 162(m) deduction limits, and report how much this cost the Company in additional taxes.

We urge you to vote FOR this resolution.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN OPPOSITION TO THE PROPOSAL

After careful consideration, the Board of Directors unanimously recommends that you vote against the AFL-CIO Reserve Fund s proposal.

PNC s compensation program is designed to attract, motivate, retain and reward the executives who are crucial to the success of our business, and is overseen by our independent Personnel and Compensation Committee. In general, PNC has designed its compensation programs in a manner intended to comply with the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code. As described in more detail on pages 88-89, we have historically sought to avoid the deduction disallowance that otherwise applies for compensation over \$1 million for certain of our senior executive officers.

Nonetheless, the Personnel and Compensation Committee has always retained the flexibility to make non-deductible grants and awards from time to time if necessary. Prior to 2009, PNC awarded limited non-deductible compensation.

In 2009, PNC participated in the U.S. Treasury s TARP Capital Purchase Program. As a result, we were subject to specific limitations on the tax deductibility of compensation. For as long as the U.S. Treasury held a TARP preferred stock interest in PNC, we could not deduct any compensation paid to covered executives in excess of \$500,000 per year, regardless of whether the compensation was performance-based.

As noted elsewhere in this proxy statement, PNC repaid the U.S. Treasury s TARP investment on February 10, 2010. As a result, we are no longer subject to these TARP-related deductibility limitations and we intend to continue to rely on the Section 162(m) performance-based exception with respect to tax deductibility of compensation.

The Proposal may be read to imply that PNC has engaged in poor pay practices related to Section 162(m). That is not the case. PNC has historically designed its compensation

programs to provide for responsible pay practices relating to Section 162(m), while retaining (but rarely utilizing) the flexibility to pay non-deductible compensation when appropriate.

The proposal may also be read to imply that PNC has failed to provide information to shareholders regarding Section 162(m). However, PNC already reports annually on Section 162(m) matters (for example, see pages 88-89), including a discussion of why we have paid non-deductible compensation in certain circumstances. Under these circumstances, imposing additional reporting obligations on PNC relating to Section 162(m) as requested by the Proposal imposes an additional reporting burden without serving any purpose beneficial to shareholders.

The Board urges a vote AGAINST the approval of this proposal.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes our overall executive compensation program, with a focus on 2009 compensation. In this section, we explain how our Board s Personnel and Compensation Committee (the Committee) made its compensation decisions for the following named executive officers:

Name	Current Title
James E. Rohr	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Richard J. Johnson	Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Joseph C. Guyaux	President
William S. Demchak	Senior Vice Chairman
Timothy G. Shack	Vice Chairman

The Committee has an overall responsibility for incentive compensation programs, in particular as they relate to risk management, and compensation decisions for senior employees. In addition to the named executive officers, the Committee reviews the compensation for a broader group of employees. This group includes all other executive officers, all other direct reports to the CEO, the heads of each of PNC s business segments, the other members of the broader group of executives known as the Corporate Executive Group (CEG), certain additional key employees, and any other employee making more than \$1.5 million in total compensation (consisting of base salary and any short-term and long-term incentive compensation). Taken as a whole, this group manages the businesses and principal functions at PNC, and is primarily responsible for managing the material risks facing our company. The Committee has also reviewed the compensation of any additional employee subject to restrictions related to PNC s participation in the U.S. Treasury s TARP Capital Purchase Program.

Our Philosophy

To succeed in highly competitive environments, we must attract, motivate, retain, and reward the employees who are crucial to the success of our business. Designing an effective compensation program requires balance, thoughtfulness and discipline.

The Committee believes that compensation should reflect performance and should be fair, competitive and reasonable in light of a person s responsibilities and experience. The Committee believes that providing a mix of compensation programs remains the best way to achieve our principles and objectives.

For banking organizations, a properly designed compensation program should align with and support the institution s risk management principles. We believe that PNC s culture of risk management informs our business strategies and how we execute those strategies, and it also informs our compensation program design and how we pay our employees.

Compensation Principles

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

In June 2009, U.S. Treasury Secretary Timothy Geithner outlined several compensation principles, which included a consideration of performance-based compensation and measurement, the time horizon of risks, alignment with risk management, post-employment benefits, and overall transparency and accountability.

In October, the Federal Reserve Board, our principal banking regulator, articulated three guiding principles for incentive compensation programs in connection with its horizontal review of incentive compensation. Those principles stated that incentive compensation arrangements at a banking organization should:

Provide employees incentives that do not encourage excessive risk-taking beyond the organization s ability to effectively identify and manage risk.

Be compatible with effective controls and risk management.

Be supported by strong corporate governance, including active and effective oversight by the organization s Board of Directors.

PNC supports the focus of these principles on performance, risk management, controls, and governance. We believe that our historical compensation programs and practices support these principles, and that our recent program modifications, described below, enhance our alignment with them.

The Impact of TARP on Compensation Decisions

The decisions that our Committee made in 2009 and 2010 were impacted by PNC s participation, as of December 31, 2008, in the U.S. Treasury s TARP Capital Purchase Program, and the investment by the Treasury in shares of preferred stock issued by PNC. PNC repaid the Treasury s preferred stock investment and ended its TARP participation on February 10, 2010.

On October 3, 2008, President Bush signed the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (EESA) into law, and on February 17, 2009, President Obama signed the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) into law. Both of these laws affected TARP participants such as PNC, with ARRA amending and restating the TARP-related restrictions of EESA.

In June 2009, the Treasury adopted an Interim Final Rule for TARP Standards for Compensation and Corporate Governance (the Interim TARP Rule), implementing some of the requirements of ARRA. This rule imposed additional restrictions on TARP participants. In 2009, all of our named executive officers were subject to TARP-related restrictions.

Under the Interim TARP Rule, we could not pay or accrue bonuses for 25 highly compensated employees (including our named executive officers). The only incentive compensation that we could provide during the TARP period was long-term restricted stock. The value of that stock could not exceed one-third of the executive officer s total compensation for the year. The TARP restrictions will also require our executives to give up some of the shares and options granted in February 2009, even though those equity awards were granted, in large part, to reward performance in 2008, at a time when PNC did not participate in TARP.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

The TARP requirements affected our ability to compensate our named executive officers in accordance with historical practice. As a result, some of our 2009 compensation decisions deviated from decisions made under previous compensation programs and did not fully reflect the objectives of those programs. Committee attempted to maintain as much as possible of the key positive attributes of our historical compensation practices. We have also

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents

attempted to align our compensation decisions with the principles reflected in the guidance provided by the Special Master for TARP Executive Compensation. In particular, a low percentage of total compensation provided in 2009 to our named executive officers was in the form of cash. Instead, we relied primarily on grants of equity-based instruments that do not permit executives to realize value for several years.

Most of the decisions discussed in this CD&A can be categorized into three distinct time periods:

January 1 June 10, 2009: Decisions made after we became a TARP participant and before Treasury released the Interim TARP Rule.

June 10, 2009 February 10, 2010: Decisions made after Treasury released the Interim TARP Rule and before we ended our TARP participation.

February 10-24, 2010: Recent decisions made after we ended our TARP participation.

In each of the three time periods, the Committee made decisions that were designed to comply with the TARP restrictions then in effect for us. Decisions made under the Interim TARP Rule may be affected by further guidance or final rules. Against that backdrop, the Committee made the following significant compensation decisions for our named executive officers, which we describe in more detail below:

Subject to TARP Restrictions			
Compensation Element	June 10, 2009 January 1 June 10,		
	2009	February 10, 2010	February 10-24, 2010
Salary	Maintained base salary	Increased base salaries effective July 1, 2009, but made the increase payable in stock units, which would generally be paid out in March 2011	Eliminated the salary increases payable in stock units effective March 2010, with the salaries returning to pre-July 2009 levels
Annual Incentive Award	Eliminated or significantly reduced cash payments for annual incentive awards based on 2008 performance	Accelerated the vesting for the February 2009 annual incentive awards paid in restricted stock but also imposed restrictions on the ability to sell the shares received Granted restricted stock based on 2009 performance, as permitted under the Interim TARP Rule, in lieu of annual incentive awards	Established a target for total annual compensation, which includes a target annual incentive award to be based on 2010 performance
	Did not grant a long-term incentive award (linked to PNC performance metrics)		Established a target for total annual compensation, which includes target long-term incentives to be awarded in 2011
Long-Term Incentive Grants	Granted options exercisable over time and options that become exercisable if we achieve specific criteria related to the successful integration of National City	Removed the service-based forfeiture provisions of the options exercisable over time	Granted long-term incentive awards (options and performance units) for future performance beginning in the second quarter of 2010
Other Benefits and Compensation	Reduced the perquisite allowance from \$50,000 to \$10,000 and prohibited tax gross-ups on perquisites	Modified stock ownership guidelines and added a retention component	No decisions
	Required certain executives to pay for all personal trips on		

corporate aircraft

Analysis of Compensation Decisions

The analysis below includes decisions made by the Committee throughout 2009 as well as the first quarter of 2010. These decisions relate to awards made for performance in 2008 and 2009, as well as awards granted in expectation of future performance.

Salaries. The Committee increased base salaries for our named executive officers effective July 1, 2009. These salary increases were delivered in PNC stock units and are included in both the Salary column of t*Sammary Compensation Table* on page 99 and the *Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2009* table on pages 102-104. The stock units will be settled in cash. The amount to be paid in cash will be equal to the reported closing price on the NYSE for a share of PNC common stock on the settlement date. The settlement date will be the earlier of March 31, 2011 and the date of the executive s death.

As opposed to a cash salary increase, an increase payable in stock units ties a large portion of the executive s base salary to PNC s performance. The salary increases were intended to provide an appropriate compensation opportunity within the TARP framework.

The Committee intended that the base salary increases would not be permanent adjustments to a named executive officer s compensation. In order to achieve our pay-for-performance objectives, once PNC repaid the TARP investment, the Committee eliminated the increase paid in stock units (effective March 2010) to all affected executives, including the named executive officers.

Annual Incentive Awards for 2008 Performance. In February 2009, consistent with our historical practices, the Committee granted annual incentive awards to each of our named executive officers, based on 2008 performance. The Committee was pleased with PNC s 2008 relative performance against the peer group, and disappointed in our absolute performance, while recognizing the volatility of the external environment that had a substantial negative impact on our absolute performance. The Committee also supported management s key strategic initiatives throughout the year, culminating in the acquisition of National City Corporation, and recognized the benefits of our approach to risk management and balance sheet management over the last several years.

Overall, the Committee believed that awarding bonuses for 2008 was reasonable and advisable, particularly in light of our strong relative performance and management s avoidance of many of the poor decisions and business strategies that had weakened many financial institutions and had caused others to fail or be acquired. However, the Committee believed that limiting or eliminating the cash portion of the bonuses and tying a more significant amount of compensation to PNC s long-term stock price, as well as deferring the executives ability to receive the cash value of this compensation, was appropriate given the challenging circumstances facing our industry and economy.

Although the Committee did not follow an express formula, it had, over the past several years, focused on two primary metrics Earnings Per Share (EPS) and Return on Common Equity (ROCE). The Committee has used these two metrics for evaluating annual corporate performance because they represent how effectively our management deploys capital and delivers earnings to our shareholders.

With respect to EPS performance, the Committee looked primarily at EPS growth compared to our peers. For the 2008 annual incentive awards, the Committee also compared our 2008 performance to an EPS Goal for the year.

The EPS Goal for 2008 was based on the projected EPS included in our annual budget. Our Board reviewed this budget in the first quarter of 2008, and the Committee validated the EPS Goal at that time. To validate this number, the Committee reviewed what the ROCE would be for the year if we reached our EPS Goal. The Committee then compared this implied ROCE with the projected ROCE for our peers. We estimated peer ROCE by using the consensus earnings estimates from the stock analysts following those companies. The Committee believed that this process appropriately assessed the competitiveness of the EPS Goal.

Following the disclosure of full-year 2008 financial data for our peers, management reviewed the actual peer group EPS, ROCE and other performance metrics with the Committee and its independent consultant. Our finance department certified our results for the year.

Management then recommended payouts, which were estimated to produce cash compensation consistent with our relative and absolute performance. Management provided information to the Committee to enable it to compare us to peers in adjusted EPS growth, ROCE and the other performance metrics. Following this review, the Committee decided on the actual amount of bonuses to pay to the executive officers, and reaffirmed its long-standing belief that bonuses should not be formulaically determined.

When comparing our 2008 performance to peers, PNC ranked second in EPS Growth and first in adjusted ROCE. For 2008, our actual EPS of \$2.46 fell short of the EPS Goal of \$5.20, even after adjusting EPS to \$3.68 for after-tax acquisition costs totaling \$422 million. The Committee gave less weight to absolute performance than it gave to relative performance, but it was still a significant factor in the bonus decisions. As mentioned above, the Committee favorably considered PNC s successful acquisition of National City Corporation at the end of 2008. The Committee reduced Mr. Demchak s annual bonus due to the lower absolute performance of our Asset and Liability management unit, which Mr. Demchak manages. The Committee recognized that this unit s underperformance occurred in an especially difficult and challenging environment.

As part of its review, the Committee also reconsidered the form of annual incentive payments. Three of our named executive officers, including our CEO, received no cash payment, while two other named executive officers received a \$250,000 cash annual incentive. The remainder of each annual incentive was granted in restricted stock. The Committee believed that making larger stock awards provided stronger incentives for its key employees. We included detailed information about these annual incentive determinations in our 2009 proxy statement.

In August 2009, the Committee accelerated the vesting of the restricted stock awarded in February. The Committee took this action in an effort to mitigate the impact of any TARP- imposed forfeiture of the restricted stock. While we were subject to the TARP restrictions, the Interim TARP Rule contemplated a reduction in the size of the equity grants for any portion of the service period extending beyond June 15, 2009.

The Committee believed that it was appropriate to seek to limit or otherwise mitigate the forfeiture provisions for two principal reasons. First, the annual incentives related to performance in 2008, before PNC s participation in the TARP Capital Purchase Program, and the Committee approved them before ARRA became law on February 17, 2009.

Second, as described above, the Committee had made a decision in February to award most, if not all, of the annual incentives in stock, rather than cash. In prior years, 75% of the annual incentive award had been paid in cash. The TARP rules would not have required any forfeiture of cash annual incentives paid to our named executive officers in February. Recognizing that an acceleration of vesting otherwise allows an immediate sale and reduces the incentive-based nature of the award, the Committee imposed a waiting period on any sales of the vested stock. Each named executive officer cannot sell or otherwise transfer this stock until February 12, 2012 (the original vesting date). The vesting acceleration, which prevents the substantial future erosion of compensation value, together with the transfer restriction, which helps to provide desirable incentives, supports the Committee s overall compensation goals and objectives.

Annual Incentive Awards for 2009 Performance. In accordance with the TARP restrictions in place at the time, the Committee did not make traditional annual incentive awards to any affected employees, including the named executive officers, based on performance in 2009. As described below, the Committee made restricted stock awards to named executive officers in December 2009, in compliance with the Interim TARP Rule.

*Long-Term Incentive Awards for 2008 Performance Options Exercisable Over Time*As disclosed in our 2009 proxy statement, the Committee granted options to our named executive officers on February 12, 2009. These grants reflected our recent historical practice and rewarded 2008 performance. By their nature, these grants also operate as a long-term incentive to enhance our future performance. The options will become exercisable over time, in three equal annual installments on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date. The options will terminate on the tenth anniversary of the grant date.

At its meeting on August 19, 2009, the Committee eliminated all service-based forfeiture provisions from the February 2009 option grants. This means that an executive may generally continue to receive the benefit of these options even after he or she terminates employment with PNC. The options will continue to become exercisable on their original schedule, and will not be fully exercisable before the third anniversary of the grant date.

The Committee took this action in an effort to mitigate the impact of any TARP-imposed forfeiture. As noted above, the Interim TARP Rule contemplates a reduction in the number of options that may be exercised, based on the portion of the service period for the options that extends beyond June 15, 2009.

Long-Term Incentive Awards for 2009 Performance Restricted Stock.On December 23, 2009, the Committee made awards of long-term restricted stock to our named executive officers. The terms of these long-term restricted stock awards were designed to comply with the requirements imposed by the Interim TARP Rule. This was the only form of performance reward or long-term incentive permitted under the rule.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

Table of Contents

The awards will vest so long as the grantee continues to perform substantial services for PNC for at least two years from the issuance date. The shares may not be sold or otherwise transferred, other than for tax withholding, until the third anniversary of the issuance date. If the shares are otherwise forfeited, cash dividends on the shares will be forfeited.

The Committee denominated the awards in dollars, with the number of shares for each award calculated by dividing the dollar amount of the award by the reported closing price on the NYSE of a share of PNC common stock on the issuance date. The issuance date was January 25, 2010, the second business day after PNC publicly released its earnings results for the fourth quarter and full year 2009.

In making these awards, the Committee considered PNC s strong performance in 2009 and total compensation awarded to each of the named executive officers, taking into account the restrictions and limitations imposed by the Interim TARP Rule. The Committee reviewed key year-to-date performance metrics for PNC, including estimates for December. Management discussed estimated revenue, net income, EPS and ROCE for the year. Among other things, the Committee considered:

management s effective balance sheet management activities in 2009

earnings (pre-tax, pre-provision) that exceeded the provision for credit losses in an unprecedented and volatile environment

growth in key capital ratios

maintenance of a strong bank liquidity position with continued core funding of loans

the continued positive impact of our BlackRock equity investment, which resulted in a \$1.1 billion gain recognized in connection with BlackRock s acquisition of Barclays Global Investors

The Committee compared the budgeted EPS presented to the Board on February 6, 2009 to the estimated full-year EPS (using information available as of December 3, 2009). The EPS amounts were adjusted for, and did not include, integration costs, a special FDIC assessment intended to build the FDIC s Deposit Insurance Fund, and the gains related to the BlackRock acquisition of Barclays Global Investors (BGI), the funding on the BlackRock long-term incentive plan, and the partial reversal of the Visa indemnification liability. With these adjustments, the budgeted EPS was \$3.45 and the estimated full-year EPS was \$3.66.

The Committee then compared our performance to peer group performance through the third quarter of 2009, which was the last time our peers had disclosed public results. Based on those results, PNC ranked 2nd in adjusted ROCE (without goodwill) and 3rd in adjusted EPS growth, out of 13 peers. PNC ranked in the top 4 of the peer group in six other key adjusted performance metrics, including return on assets and growth in revenue, non-interest income, net income, deposits and loans.

The Committee also noted that the National City integration exceeded expectations in 2009, with realized cost savings of over \$800 million and an increase in the multi-year cost savings goal to \$1.5 billion (from \$1.2 billion). In addition, management successfully completed the consolidation of bank charters and the first major conversion of National City customers to the PNC platform in November 2009.

In deciding on the number of shares to be granted to each named executive officer, the Committee considered the total compensation that would be provided to them for 2009. The Committee analyzed the compensation awards made in 2009 and how they aligned with a particular performance year. As part of that review, the February 2009 grants were treated as 2008-related compensation.

Using this methodology, the Committee noted that the 2009-related compensation reflected a slight overall reduction when compared to 2008-related compensation. The Committee also received an explanation of the disclosure implications of its decisions, in light of the SEC s new rules for compensation reporting (as reflected in the Summary Compensation Table on page 99).

Based on our performance to date, both relative and absolute, as well as the substantial progress in the integration of National City, the Committee believed that the restricted stock grants helped to fulfill the Committee s compensation objectives by increasing the alignment between executives and long-term shareholders.

Following that decision, the Committee reviewed actual absolute and relative performance for 2009 at its meeting on February 9, 2010. This meeting occurred after the public release of full-year financial information for PNC and its peers. Based on that review, the Committee continued to believe that the restricted stock awards granted in December 2009 had been appropriate. PNC finished 2nd in the thirteen-member peer group in adjusted ROCE (without goodwill) and 4th in adjusted EPS growth. The final reported EPS was \$4.36 and the adjusted EPS was \$3.40. These amounts reflected slightly higher integration costs, a larger gain on the BGI acquisition, and lower reported EPS than what was reviewed in December.

Long-Term Incentive Awards for Future Performance. Over the past fifteen months, the Committee has granted the following long-term incentive awards tied to our future performance:

Performance-based stock options tied to the success of the National City integration (February 2009)

Stock options granted in April 2010 and exercisable over time (February 2010)

Incentive performance unit opportunities based on our future performance (February 2009 and February 2010)

The Committee also made a special retention grant to a named executive officer in February 2009. These grants are all described in more detail below.

Performance Options. The Committee granted performance-based options in February 2009 that were tied to the successful integration of National City. Instead of granting an incentive performance unit opportunity that would have been in line with grants from prior years, the Committee granted these new performance-vesting stock options to our named executive officers. These options will generally vest in their entirety on the third anniversary of grant, subject to the Committee s determination in its reasonable discretion that the following criteria related to the National City acquisition and integration have been met:

\$1.2 billion in annual pre-tax cost savings achieved on a run-rate basis by 2011.

Return on assets at least equal to 0.90% by 2011.

National City acquisition accretive to PNC s earnings per share on a GAAP basis by 2010.

Internal rate of return on the acquisition of at least 15%.

Balance sheet acquired by PNC from National City positioned to meet PNC s desired risk profile.

Successful implementation of PNC s established enterprise risk management discipline.

Strong and reputable leadership team in place.

PNC well-positioned for future growth.

The Committee will have the discretion to vest the options in part if these criteria are not met in full but the Committee determines that the vested portion appropriately reflects success against these criteria. The Committee believes that this combination of criteria aligns the interests of our executives with the interests of our shareholders by providing incentives to mitigate a significant risk to PNC the successful integration of National City Corporation.

Following the grant, the Committee took no further action with respect to these options. Unlike the time-based options granted in February 2009, the Committee did not eliminate the service-based forfeiture conditions for these performance-vesting options. Based on the criteria to be measured over a three-year period, and the strategic importance of the National City integration efforts to PNC as a company, the Committee did not believe that it was appropriate to eliminate such conditions.

Options Exercisable Over Time. On February 24, 2010, the Committee granted stock options exercisable over time to the named executive officers. All grants were made under our shareholder-approved 2006 Incentive Award Plan.

The grant date for these options will be the second business day after PNC publicly releases its earnings results for the first quarter of 2010. The Committee believed that a grant of time-based options, priced after March 31, 2010, would provide an appropriate incentive for future performance. The options have the same material terms as the time-based options granted in the first quarter of 2009. The amounts granted to our named executive officers were as follows: James E. Rohr (225,000); Richard J. Johnson (47,500); Joseph C. Guyaux (75,000); William S. Demchak (75,000); and Timothy G. Shack (52,500).

Incentive Performance Unit Opportunities (PNC Performance). In 2009, the Committee determined that no named executive officer would receive a grant of incentive performance unit opportunities, apart from Mr. Demchak s special award, which we describe below. The Committee made this decision for several reasons, including the continued unpredictability of the economic and industry climate and the importance to PNC of achieving a successful integration of National City. The Committee believed that the performance units to named executive officers in each of 2006, 2007 and 2008.

On February 24, 2010, the Committee granted new incentive performance unit opportunities to the named executive officers, reflecting a performance period to begin on April 1, 2010. These grants were made under our shareholder-approved 2006 Incentive Award Plan. The Committee believed that these grants were appropriate to create a desired level of performance-based compensation in order to provide appropriate incentives for future performance.

We express the grants of incentive performance units in shares, not dollars. Each executive receives a target number of share units . Any final payout will be expressed as a percentage of the target share units (100%) and may reach a maximum of two times target (200%). The target share unit number will be increased to reflect the value of any deemed dividends declared during the performance period.

Under the terms of these grants, the grantee has the opportunity to receive a payout in shares of PNC common stock, or a combination of stock and cash-equivalents, based on our performance relative to peers. Performance will be measured with respect to corporate diluted EPS growth and ROCE performance in each of three years 2010, 2011 and 2012. However, the 2010 performance period will be for a partial year beginning April 1st and ending December 31st so that no part of the performance period will coincide with the period during which our TARP preferred stock was outstanding. The performance periods for 2011 and 2012 will be full years, so that the overall performance period will be 2³/4 years. To allow for this difference, performance for the three years will be weighted, with 2010 performance counting for less than performance for each of 2011 and 2012.

The amount of the grant is stated in terms of a target number of share units. The actual award may range from nothing up to two times target, as adjusted upward during the performance period for phantom dividends. The Committee may reset the peer group and make other adjustments annually, but unless adjusted by the Committee in the future, it is anticipated that the performance metrics and potential payout schedule will be the same for each of the 2010, 2011 and 2012 periods in the overall performance period for these grants.

The potential payout amount at the end of the overall performance period is performance-based. First, an average percentage is determined for our relative corporate EPS growth and ROCE performance for each of the 2010, 2011 and 2012 periods (with the 2010 percentage reflecting EPS growth and ROCE performance for the 2nd, 3rd and 4th quarters of the year, compared in the case of EPS Growth to the same quarter in 2009, rather than the full year). The percentage is based on the potential payout calculation schedules established for that year by the Committee, giving equal weight to EPS growth and ROCE performance. The basic annual payout calculation schedule generates a payout percentage for that year based on our relative position within the peer group that year with respect to EPS growth and ROCE performance. Companies with a loss year or years will rank below those that do not have loss years.

At the end of the $2^{3}/4$ year performance period, the three percentages resulting from these measurements are themselves then averaged on a weighted average basis, with the 2010 percentage carrying 3/4 of the weight of each of 2011 and 2012. Finally, this overall average percentage is applied to the number of dividend-adjusted target share units to arrive at the calculated award payout amount. This calculated amount is expressed as a number of share units. Final awards are determined by the Committee. The Committee will

review the calculated award payout amounts for these grants early in 2013 and will make its final award decisions at that time. The Committee may reduce the calculated award payout amounts.

Corporate performance criteria for these grants will be based on our annual EPS growth and ROCE performance relative to our peers, with slightly different adjustments. For these grants, EPS and ROCE performance results will be adjusted, on an after-tax basis, for the impact of any extraordinary items, items resulting from a change in tax law, discontinued operations, acquisition and merger integration costs, Visa-litigation-related costs or expense and any other gains on redemption or sale of Visa shares as applicable, acceleration of the accretion of any remaining issuance discount in connection with the redemption of TARP preferred stock, and, in our case, the net impact on PNC of significant gains or losses related to BlackRock transactions, such as adjusting 2009 results for purposes of the 2010 EPS growth comparison to exclude the 4th quarter 2009 gain related to BlackRock s acquisition of Barclays Global Investors. EPS will also be adjusted for any stock splits, and ROCE will also be adjusted for the impact of any goodwill. Adjustments will be done, including with respect to PNC, on the basis of publicly disclosed financial information.

For the 2010 performance year, we will use the peer group described on page 87, and the following payout schedule:

Performance Measures			
Peer Group Rank for EPS Growth and I	ROCE	Payout Percentage	
Maximum	1	200%	
	2	183%	
	3	167%	
	4	150%	
	5	133%	
	6	117%	
Median/Target	7	100%	
	8	80%	
	9	60%	
	10	40%	
Minimum	11	0%	
	12	0%	
	13	0%	

Generally, in order to receive an award payout, an executive must still be employed by us at the time of the payout. There are certain limited exceptions that may be approved by the Committee. In most cases, there will be further limitations on the maximum size of any award payout that may be approved for a former employee. The grants also include a formula for calculating an award upon a change of control. Awarded share units up to the initial target share unit number will be paid in shares of our common stock. For this purpose, the number of target share units is not adjusted for phantom dividends. Any remaining awarded share units will be paid in cash. The amount of cash will be equal to the market value of the number of shares represented by the remaining share units.

Incentive Performance Unit Opportunities (ALM Performance). As in prior years, the Committee granted William S. Demchak additional long-term incentive opportunity awards in both 2009 and 2010. Any payouts received by Mr. Demchak will depend on the performance of the Asset and Liability Management (ALM) unit over a three-year performance period. For the 2009 grant, this will reflect each of the three full years from 2009 through 2011. For the 2010 grant, the performance period will be 2³/4 years, beginning on April 1, 2010. This will ensure that no part of the performance period for the 2010 grant will coincide with the period during which our TARP preferred stock was outstanding. The target number of share units in Mr. Demchak s 2009 grant was 96,556 and the target number in the 2010 grant was 46,485. The 2009 grant will be subject to partial forfeiture by Mr. Demchak, based on the restrictions in the Interim TARP Rule and described on page 69.

Each of the 2009 and 2010 performance unit award opportunity grants have a maximum award size at the end of the performance period of 200% of the target share units. The Committee will certify the level of performance achieved at the end of the performance period and determine the final number of awarded units in early 2012 (for the 2009 grant) or early 2013 (for the 2010 grant). Awarded performance units will be paid in cash, with the maximum amount of the cash payment determined by multiplying the number of performance units then awarded by the per share price of our common stock on the award date. These grants will not be adjusted for the value of any deemed dividends, unlike the regular incentive performance unit grants based on overall PNC performance.

Corporate performance goals for this grant will be based on the investment performance of PNC s ALM unit as compared to benchmark performance for each of the years (or partial year, in the case of 2010) in the overall performance period. Each of these potential award amounts will be based on the level of performance achieved by the ALM unit for that year or partial year relative to the benchmark performance index (in basis points) and the potential award payout schedules for levels of performance established by the Committee for this grant. The benchmark that will be used in making the comparative measurements for these performance goals will be the same internally generated benchmark performance index that we use to evaluate the investment performance of our ALM unit, as adjusted annually.

The annual potential award payout schedule has a sliding scale that ranges from 0 for performance below the threshold level for a positive award up through 200% for performance significantly above benchmark. The annual potential payout schedule for the 2010 grant is as follows, with percentages interpolated for performance between the points indicated below. This is the same schedule that the Committee approved in February 2009, and will also apply, on a going forward basis, to the 2010 performance years of Mr. Demchak s 2008 and 2009 grants.

Annual Performance Relative to Benchmark	Annual Potential Payout Percentage of Target
+40 basis points or higher	200%
+20 basis points	150%
0 basis points (at benchmark) to -25 basis points	100%
-35 basis points	40%
-40 basis points or below	0%

The final maximum award that Mr. Demchak will be eligible to receive will be the weighted average of the potential award amounts (expressed as a percentage of target) calculated for each of 2010, 2011 and 2012, with 2010 performance counting for less than performance for each of 2011 and 2012. The Committee will have the discretion to award any amount up to, but not exceeding, the maximum amount so determined by the levels of performance achieved, if any.

At the end of the relevant performance period, the Committee will decide whether to exercise negative discretion. In doing so, the Committee expects to take into account such factors as absolute ALM unit financial performance, absolute proprietary trading results, cumulative performance relative to the benchmark, adherence to risk parameters, and contributions to the success of our other businesses.

Generally, Mr. Demchak must still be employed by us at the time the Committee makes its determination, with certain limited exceptions, in order to receive an award payout with respect to these performance unit grants. The grants also include a formula for calculating a final award in the event of a change of control.

The 2010 grants of incentive performance unit opportunities (and, in the case of Mr. Demchak, the 2009 ALM grants) consisted of the following:

Target Grant (in share units)	Grant D	ate Fair Value*
-		
45,000	\$	2,420,100
9,500	\$	510,910
15,000	\$	806,700
15,000	\$	806,700
10,500	\$	564,690
96,556	\$	2,999,995
46,485	\$	2,499,963
	45,000 9,500 15,000 15,000 10,500 96,556	45,000 \$ 9,500 \$ 15,000 \$ 15,000 \$ 10,500 \$ 96,556 \$

* Based on a grant date closing price of \$53.78 (for the 2010 regular and ALM incentive performance unit grants) and \$31.07 (for the 2009 ALM incentive performance unit grants).

Retention Awards. The Committee also awarded special compensation in 2009 to Timothy G. Shack, owing to his unique importance to our company. Mr. Shack is responsible for PNC Global Investment Servicing, a primary business segment that is currently under contract to be sold to a third party. In addition, Mr. Shack has helped to create the robust technology capabilities throughout PNC and has current responsibility for managing the technology integration of National City.

The Committee approved a cash retention amount of \$561,000 in February 2009, payable upon Mr. Shack s retirement. In addition, Mr. Shack s grant of options tied to the integration of National City will be pro-rated based on his future service to PNC. He will retain at least one-third of the options and if he completes additional years of service, he will retain a greater percentage of the options, if they become exercisable.

*Previously Granted Long-Term Incentive Awards for Future Performance Payouts in 2009 and 2010*In our 2009 proxy statement, we disclosed the incentive performance unit payouts for the awards granted on March 21, 2006 to our named executive officers (and an additional award granted to William S. Demchak on February 14, 2006). These awards resulted in payouts to all of our named executive officers in early 2009, following the end of the three-year performance period on December 31, 2008. These grants provided an opportunity for the executive to receive a payout after the end of the performance period based on our multi-year performance. We measure performance relative to our peers in the case of the incentive performance units and based on the performance of our ALM management unit compared to a benchmark in the case of Mr. Demchak s additional performance award.

As previously disclosed, the Committee also granted incentive performance unit award opportunities under our 2006 Incentive Award Plan on January 4, 2007 to certain of our senior officers, including our CEO and other named executive officers, and made an additional incentive performance unit grant to William S. Demchak on February 13, 2007. These 2007-2009 grants were substantially similar to the 2006-2008 grants. Following the end of the three-year performance period on December 31, 2009, the Committee certified the levels of performance achieved for both programs and determined the final awards.

In the case of the 2007 incentive performance units, the performance period covered the three full years 2007, 2008, and 2009, and measured PNC s earnings per share growth (EPS growth) and return on average common shareholders equity (ROCE) performance, each adjusted as defined in the grants, relative to the comparable performance of its peers in each of those three years.

The maximum award that the Committee could grant was a percentage of the incentive performance units initially granted (as adjusted for phantom dividends during the performance period). The final maximum payout percentage averaged six separate numbers our peer group ranking in EPS growth and ROCE for each of the three years in the performance period. In 2007 and 2008, the peer group consisted of 11 companies, including PNC. In 2009, the peer group increased to 13 companies, including PNC. The six metrics averaged as follows:

	F	ROCE	EPS	5 Growth
	Potential			Potential
	PNC	Payout	PNC	Payout
Performance Year	Rank	Percentage	Rank	Percentage
2007	#4	142%	#6	109%
2008	#1	200%	#2	183%
2009	#1	200%	#5	133%
Potential Payout Percentage: 161.18%				

After evaluating the performance, the Committee did not believe negative discretion was necessary and awarded the maximum payout permitted for the performance achieved, or 161.18% of the dividend-adjusted target units.

With the additional 2007 incentive performance units granted to Mr. Demchak, the performance period for those units also covered the three full years 2007, 2008, and 2009. Rather than EPS growth and relative ROCE, Mr. Demchak s grant measured the performance of PNC s Asset and Liability Management unit relative to an internally

generated benchmark. In 2007, PNC retained BlackRock Solutions, a third party vendor, to evaluate and validate the construction of this benchmark. This evaluation was reviewed in a joint session of the Committee and the Risk Committee.

The maximum award that the Committee could grant was a percentage of the share units awarded. The final maximum payout percentage averaged three separate numbers the percentage assigned to the ALM unit s performance relative to the benchmark performance index for each of the three years. These percentages came from a Committee-approved schedule and were as follows:

Performance Year	Potential Payout Percentage	
2007	0%	
2008	0%	
2009	200%	
Potential Payout Percentage: 66.67%		

In making its award decision, the Committee considered the extraordinary performance of PNC s ALM unit in 2009 and the unprecedented market volatility that negatively affected performance in 2007 and 2008, as well as the overall management of the balance sheet over the three years, which helped position PNC during a singularly challenging period.

Based on the factors described above, the Committee approved the following awards:

Share-Equivalents

			Paid in	Cash
		Paid in	# of Share	
Name	Total Units	Shares	Equivalents	Cash Paid
James E. Rohr	62,653	35,000	27,653	\$ 1,417,792
Richard J. Johnson	13,426	7,500	5,926	\$ 303,813
Joseph C. Guyaux	23,271	13,000	10,271	\$ 526,609
William S. Demchak	23,271	13,000	10,271	\$ 526,609
William S. Demchak A&L Unit Award	17,601	0	17,601	\$ 902,397
Timothy G. Shack	19,691	11,000	8,691	\$ 445,592

Perquisites. The Committee believes that perquisites should be a minimal part of executive compensation. We consider a benefit to be a perquisite or personal benefit unless its purpose is clearly and exclusively business related. We value perquisites based on their incremental cost to us.

The principal perquisites that we may provide to some or all of our executive officers include: personal use of corporate aircraft, including where the use is dictated by security concerns; dues we pay for certain club memberships; the services of outside professionals and financial consultants; the incidental costs of medical examinations not covered by health insurance; and home security devices. From time to time, we may provide additional perquisites to an executive officer on an isolated basis.

Effective January 1, 2009, the Committee reduced its historical \$50,000 perquisite cap to \$10,000. The Committee also approved a policy prohibiting executive officers from

receiving tax gross-ups on any perquisites. For 2009, each of our named executive officers has reimbursed PNC for certain amounts related to perquisites. As a result of these reimbursements, none of our named executive officers have perquisites exceeding \$10,000 in total incremental cost for 2009.

In 2009, the Committee also determined that James E. Rohr, Joseph C. Guyaux, and William S. Demchak will continue to have access to our corporate aircraft for personal flights, but required each of these individuals to pay PNC for the incremental cost of all such flights, as contemplated under the terms of lease (time-sharing) agreements between PNC and the executive. Prior to this decision, personal flight costs for these executives had been permissible up to the \$50,000 allowance. During 2009, each of these three executives paid for all personal usage of the aircraft under the terms of these agreements.

The Committee previously approved the time-sharing agreements in order to comply with Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) rules and regulations that would otherwise prohibit executives from reimbursing PNC for the incremental cost of personal flights. Due to certain operational restrictions and administrative efficiencies, we operate our corporate aircraft under FAA rules and regulations that limit our ability to accept reimbursement for personal aircraft usage. These lease agreements provide a mechanism to obtain reimbursement from the executive. The costs paid by our executive officers under the terms of the agreements include certain incremental costs (such as fuel and pilot expenses), as well as a federal excise tax and other fees. For flights subject to these time sharing agreements, the officer is required to pay us the maximum amount permissible under FAA regulations.

Post-Employment Compensation. We include additional information about our post-employment compensation plans in *Pension Benefits at 2009 Fiscal Year-End* on pages 112-114 and *Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal 2009* on pages 115-116.

Changes to the Executive Compensation Program

On February 24, 2010, the Committee approved an executive compensation program that included elements of our historical, pre-TARP compensation programs, along with some enhancements. This program will affect our named executive officers and will apply to compensation awarded in 2011 based on 2010 performance. The Committee believes that this executive compensation program is appropriate in light of PNC s current mix of businesses, size, and performance and risk management goals, and that the program is consistent with our overall compensation philosophy.

For our named executive officers and other key employees, the Committee approved the executive compensation program with the following features and objectives:

	Objectives	Features
Compensation Targets	To promote transparency in the compensation process, and to continue to provide competitive compensation opportunities	Set individual total compensation targets (covering base salary, annual incentives, and long-term incentive awards)
Balance	To provide multiple compensation levers that link executive compensation with our performance over time	Use a mixture of compensation awards with varying forms of payment, time horizons and triggers
Paying for Performance	To help link compensation to results (at the corporate, business unit and individual levels) and effective risk management	Use several measurable metrics, including risk adjustments, and apply them on both an absolute and, where applicable, a relative basis Award at least 50% of compensation in equity to named executive officers (CEO at 60%), supplemented by increased stock ownership requirements
Use of Equity and Mandatory Deferral	To align the interests of our executive leadership and our long-term shareholders, to encourage a focus on PNC s long-term success, and to discourage excessive risk-taking	Generally deliver equity awards in a mix of options and long-term incentive awards
		Defer at least 25% of annual incentives over a three-year period

During the February 24 meeting, the Committee also approved the mechanism for calculating 2010 target performance, in order to assist the Committee in decisions with respect to an annual incentive award payment, which would typically be paid in the first quarter of 2011. The Committee will evaluate performance using the following absolute and relative financial metrics:

	Definition	Metrics Used
Absolute Performance	Compares final 2010 performance	Net Income, Pre-Tax, Pre-Provision
	metrics to those in the 2010 budget	Earnings Per Share (EPS)
	presented to our Board of Directors	Return on Common Equity without goodwill (ROCE)
	presented to our board of Directors	Return on Common Equity without good with (ROCE)
Relative Performance	Compares final 2010 performance	EPS Growth
	metrics for PNC to the same metrics	ROCE
	for our peer group companies	

To determine the potential award, absolute and relative performance will be equally weighted. Each of the metrics used to calculate absolute and relative performance will also be equally weighted. We will assign a sliding scale of potential payouts under each performance calculation, ranging from 0% to 150%.

For compensation purposes, the metrics will be adjusted to exclude integration costs, TARP redemption costs, any one-time gain on the sale of PNC Global Investment Servicing, and discontinued operations. With respect to peer performance, we will attempt to make similar adjustments based on public disclosures.

Using this process, the Committee expects to make determinations for annual incentive awards in the first quarter of 2011 after reviewing the final 2010 performance for PNC and our peers. We will disclose the decisions the Committee makes, the actual performance targets, and how we performed against those targets (on both an absolute and relative basis). In making final award determinations in 2011, the Committee may adjust up or down the awards suggested by the formula described above. The Committee retains this discretion in order to consider other factors that it deems necessary or advisable to evaluate in making its final compensation decisions. As our TARP preferred stock was outstanding from January 1 to February 10, 2010, the incentive compensation provided in 2011 under this program will be prorated to reflect this period of time when we were subject to TARP-related restrictions.

Peer Group Determination

We measure our corporate performance against a group of financial services companies. Management and the Committee use this group to help us compare our corporate performance and our executive compensation program and awards.

The Committee annually evaluates these companies and determines the composition of the group for the upcoming year. In addition to using this group for general comparative purposes, our incentive performance unit grants specifically require the selection of a defined peer group. As explained above, the corporate performance factors for these grants are based on our performance relative to a peer group for each year of the three-year performance period.

In approving a peer group, the Committee analyzes several factors, including the mix and complexity of businesses, the markets being served, market capitalization, asset size, and changes resulting from mergers or shifts in strategic direction. We also look at the companies with whom we compete for talent.

In 2009 and 2010, the Committee discussed the composition of the peer group with management and McLagan, the Committee s independent consultant. In 2009, management retained Frederic W. Cook & Co., Inc., an independent compensation consultant, to evaluate the changing financial industry landscape. Due to the many changes in the financial industry generally, our substantially increased size and scope at the beginning of 2009, and a significant number of mergers and other changes with respect to our 2008 peers and other industry leaders, the Committee changed the peer group composition for 2009. It retained the same peer group for 2010. The Committee selected the following peer group for 2009 and 2010:

2010 Peer Group

BB&T Corporation

Bank of America Corporation

Capital One Financial, Inc.

Comerica Inc.

Fifth Third Bancorp

JPMorgan Chase

KeyCorp

M&T Bank

Regions Financial Corporation

SunTrust Banks, Inc.

U.S. Bancorp

Wells Fargo & Company

The Committee believes that this peer group provides a balanced mix of institutions in light of widespread industry consolidation and our growth and expanded business mix.

Our Policies on Timing of Awards

The Committee has adopted a policy for making equity compensation grants. This policy formalizes the practices that we generally use to grant stock options and other equity awards to all employees, including our named executive officers. The policy permits a handful of specific authorized grant dates for stock options the second business day after we publicly announce quarterly or year-end earnings or the date of the Board meeting at which the prior year s annual incentive awards are discussed. All options are granted on the first authorized date that occurs after the option grant decision has been made.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

The Committee believes that granting and pricing options as of specifically identified dates improves transparency and reduces risk. The Committee also seeks the flexibility to make all of its principal compensation decisions (salary, annual incentive, equity-based grants) on one specific date. No changes in the identity of an option grantee or the number of shares subject to the option may be made after the grant date for that option.

Our current practice is to use an exercise price for our options equal to the closing price on the grant date.

Generally, the Committee delegates to management the opportunity to grant options to employees out of a pool of options established by the Committee for each year around the beginning of the year, but the policy for these grants is otherwise the same as the policy applicable to grants to executive officers and other members of senior executive management. Most of these options are granted to these employees as part of the annual performance and compensation review process, with a grant date the same as the one used for the executive officers and other members of senior executive management. To the extent the pool is not fully utilized at that time, management may grant additional options later in the year, all of which are granted as of the date two business days after the quarterly earnings release next following management s decision to grant such options.

Tax Considerations

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code disallows, with certain exceptions, a federal income tax deduction for compensation over \$1 million paid to each of our CEO and the three highest-paid executive officers other than the CEO and the CFO, as long as they serve in that capacity as of the last day of our fiscal year. An exception to this disallowance applies to performance-based compensation paid under shareholder-approved plans.

Awards made under our shareholder-approved plans the 1996 Executive Incentive Award Plan (annual incentive awards) and the 2006 Incentive Award Plan (other equity-based awards) are intended to be eligible for the performance-based exception and therefore deductible by PNC for federal income tax purposes. Under current SEC and tax rules, the named executive officers are not the same individuals as the executive officers whose compensation is subject to Section 162(m).

Although the Committee considers the desirability of limiting PNC s non-deductible expenses when it makes compensation decisions, the Committee believes in maintaining the flexibility and competitive effectiveness of the executive compensation program. Tax deductibility, while an important consideration, is analyzed as part of the larger program. The Committee has, from time to time, made grants and awards that were not deductible for federal income tax purposes.

During 2009, PNC participated in the U.S. Treasury s TARP Capital Purchase Program. As long as the Treasury maintained its preferred stock investment in PNC under the TARP program, we were subject to more strict limitations on the tax deductibility of compensation. As a TARP participant, we could not deduct any compensation paid to covered executives in excess of \$500,000 per year, regardless of whether the compensation was performance-based.

This TARP-imposed restriction resulted in an increase to the amount of non-deductible compensation that we paid in 2009. In 2009, the Committee weighed the benefits of tax deductibility against the drawbacks in reducing a senior executive s total compensation to the TARP-deductible limit of \$500,000. The Committee believed that such a reduction would severely weaken the incentive and motivational components of our executive compensation program, as well as cause likely competitive harm. The Committee determined that the compensation awarded to its named executive officers for 2009 performance was reasonable and appropriate, despite the limitations on tax deductibility, for the reasons

discussed above, including PNC s strong relative performance in a challenging environment and its experienced and skilled leadership team.

As noted elsewhere, PNC repaid the U.S. Treasury s TARP investment on February 10, 2010. As a result, we are no longer subject to these TARP-related deductibility limitations and the Committee intends to rely on the Section 162(m) performance-based exception with respect to the tax deductibility of compensation awarded in 2010 after the TARP redemption.

Other Equity Ownership Policies

We have established several policies that reinforce the importance of aligning the financial interests of our executive officers and shareholders, and that impose certain controls and restrictions on the ability of an executive officer to buy or sell our securities.

Executive Stock Ownership Policy. Our executive officers historically have held a significant portion of their personal wealth in the form of our common stock (or phantom stock units that mirror the performance of our common stock). The Committee believes it is important to require most of our executive officers, including all of the named executive officers, to meet minimum stock ownership guidelines.

Until recently, we expressed these guidelines in dollars, and did not require any retention of future awards. With the approval the Committee, we revised our stock ownership policy, effective January 1, 2010. The new policy now denominates the ownership requirement in shares, and each executive officer and other key employees are also subject to additional ownership requirements. The new ownership requirements will increase the number of PNC shares that an individual needs to own over time. The increased ownership amounts will be calculated using a percentage of future equity grants.

The Committee believes that these revisions strengthen the original intentions of our stock ownership policy. As new awards vest, designated employees will need to retain more shares of stock, which they must then hold until they retire or leave PNC. This more dynamic ownership policy reflects compensation awards over an executive s career, and also ties an executive s personal wealth more closely to the performance of PNC and the interests of our long-term shareholders.

Equity interests that count toward satisfaction of the ownership guidelines include shares owned outright by the officer, or his or her spouse and dependent children, restricted shares (subject to vesting requirements), shares held in our ISP and phantom stock units held in our SISP or Deferred Compensation Plan.

The new guidelines are as follows:

	Ownership		
	Guideline		Prior
	Shares/Share	Retention	Ownership
Officer or Designation	Equivalents	Ratio	Guideline
Chairman and CEO	125,000	33%	5 x base salary
President; Senior Vice Chairman	50,000	33%	4 x base salary
Management Executive Committee Member*	25,000	25%	3 x base salary
Other CEG Members	25,000	25%	3 x base salary
Controller	5,000	10%	1 x base salary

*Includes other executive officers, including our other two named executive officers.

Over time, the new guidelines will link additional stock ownership to compensation awards, rather than stock price volatility. For the named executive officers, the base ownership levels under the new and old policies are as follows: James E. Rohr (125,000 shares/\$5,000,000); Richard J. Johnson (25,000 shares/\$1,425,000); William S. Demchak (50,000 shares/\$2,400,000); Joseph C. Guyaux (50,000 shares/\$2,480,000); and Timothy G. Shack (25,000 shares/\$1,530,000).

Newly hired or promoted employees who become subject to these guidelines will have up to six years to comply. The Committee monitors compliance with these stock ownership guidelines and has determined that all executive officers currently comply.

Blackout Periods and Pre-Clearance of Securities Transactions. We have a policy that prohibits certain employees, including all executive officers, from purchasing or selling our securities beginning 15 days before the end of each calendar quarter until the second business day after we release our earnings for that quarter. We may also impose additional trading restrictions on our executive officers due to the availability of material, non-public information regarding PNC or our securities. In addition, we require certain employees, including all executive officers, to pre-clear personal investments (other than in specified types of securities) made by the individual or any immediate family members.

Other Trading Restrictions. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics prohibits all employees from day trading or short selling PNC securities and prohibits employees from engaging in transactions in any derivative of PNC securities (other than securities issued under a PNC compensation plan), including buying and writing options.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

We have reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis with PNC s management, and based on our review and discussions, we recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in this proxy statement.

On December 31, 2008, PNC issued approximately \$7.6 billion in preferred stock and common stock warrants to the U.S. Treasury under the TARP Capital Purchase Program. PNC repaid the \$7.6 billion in preferred stock on February 10, 2010. As a result of this investment, PNC was subject to Section 111 of the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (EESA), as amended by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) and as implemented by the Treasury s Interim Final Rule effective June 15, 2009 (Interim TARP Rule), which imposes certain compensation restrictions on senior executive officers or SEOs and other highly compensated employees.

In compliance with Sections 111(b)(3)(A), 111(b)(3)(E), 111(b)(3)(F), and 111(c) of EESA, as amended by ARRA, and in accordance with the Interim TARP Rule, we have:

- Discussed, evaluated and reviewed at least every six months (since September 14, 2009) with senior risk officers the SEO compensation plans to ensure that the SEO compensation plans do not encourage SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of PNC;
- (2) Discussed, evaluated and reviewed with senior risk officers at least every six months (since September 14, 2009) employee compensation plans in light of the risks posed to PNC by such plans and how to limit such risks;
- (3) Discussed, evaluated, and reviewed at least every six months (since September 14, 2009) the employee compensation plans of PNC to ensure that these plans do not encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of PNC to enhance the compensation of any of PNC s employees; and
- (4) At least once in the 2009 fiscal year, provided a narrative description of how the SEO compensation plans do not encourage the SEOs to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of the TARP recipient, including how these SEO compensation plans do not encourage behavior focused on short-term results rather than long-term value creation, the risks posed by employee compensation plans and how these risks were limited, including how these employee compensation plans do not encourage the not encourage behavior focused on short-term results rather than long-term value creation, and how the TARP recipient has ensured that the employee compensation plans do not encourage the manipulation of reported earnings of the TARP recipient to enhance the compensation of any of the TARP recipient s employees.

We hereby certify that we have completed the reviews of the SEO compensation plans and employee compensation plans required under paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) above. We have reviewed the narrative description contained in this proxy statement in accordance with paragraph (4) above.

The Personnel and Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of

The PNC Financial Services Group, Inc.

Dennis F. Strigl, Chairman

Charles E. Bunch

Paul W. Chellgren

Kay Coles James

Richard B. Kelson

Thomas J. Usher

COMPENSATION AND RISK

In this section, we explain how we think about managing risk at PNC, and the relationship between risk management, performance, and compensation. We also explain the risk reviews we presented to our Personnel and Compensation Committee, and the methodology we developed to assess the potential risks of our incentive compensation plans.

Risk Management at PNC. We cannot avoid risk. How we manage our business and make decisions on what we offer to customers inherently involves risk.

These risks may be internal or external, or within our control or not, but we do not attempt to eliminate all risk. Instead, we want to understand, assess and manage the risk. We want our decision to reflect a defined risk appetite, and our desire to return to a moderate risk profile. We want to make sure that we receive appropriate compensation for the risks we take. It is our responsibility to establish an enterprise risk management framework to manage risk for the benefit of our shareholders.

We strive to embed a culture of risk management throughout PNC. With each of our employees, we reinforce the importance of managing risks to our ability to execute a successful strategy. Our risk management focus sets expectations and, together with other risk management tools, helps to create risk-sensitive incentive compensation programs.

Our risk management group at PNC sets limits on the transactions that may be taken by employees in a line of business. We set out boundaries and risk tolerances in policies and procedures that we communicate to all of our employees. Board committees approve our highest level policies. We discuss our risk management approach in more detail in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. We intend that the incentives we build into our executive compensation structure support our risk appetite and that these incentives, when viewed in total, should not encourage our employees to take unnecessary or excessive risks.

The Relationship Between Compensation and Risk. We attempt to align how we manage risk with how we compensate employees. We have risk management policies and procedures that guide behavior. Our incentive compensation programs should encourage and reward this desired behavior and the execution of our strategy.

By setting and communicating our risk tolerances in advance, we attempt to control the risks that our employees can take. We believe that this risk-focused approach sets an appropriate tone.

Our compensation program is designed to encourage management of risk and discourage inappropriate risk-taking by granting a diverse portfolio of incentive compensation awards to our executives and other senior employees that is expected to reward desired behavior over time. Specifically, we balance our portfolio of awards between fixed and variable compensation; cash and equity-based compensation; and annual and long-term compensation. We base awards on the Committee s assessment of a variety of quantitative and qualitative performance measurements, both on an absolute and a relative basis. Compensation decisions also take into consideration other factors, such as effective risk management, compliance with controls and ethical duties, competition for top talent,

market-based pay levels, and the need to attract, develop, grow and retain the leadership team.

Risk Review of Compensation Plans. We acquired National City Corporation on December 31, 2008, and commenced a review in January 2009 of all of the legacy National City incentive compensation plans. After completing this review early in 2009, we performed a risk-based review of all of our other incentive compensation plans.

At several meetings of the Committee during 2009, culminating in a discussion at the January 28, 2010 meeting, our Chief Risk Officer discussed this risk review with the Committee. These discussions combined our assessments of legacy PNC and National City incentive compensation plans.

Members of our Human Resources and Risk Management departments, working with legal counsel and external consultants at Towers Watson, performed this risk review.

Faced with a broad range of plans, we developed a methodology to analyze the potential risks. We used principles of materiality and risk measurement to analyze incentive compensation plans posing the highest potential risk to PNC. We looked at multiple metrics and plan characteristics to give us different ways to assess risk.

We looked at the plans that posed the greatest potential risk to the company, either by the nature of the plans themselves or the identity of the plan participants. We then looked at specific plan attributes to determine how the plan might encourage excessive risk-taking and whether there were any factors to mitigate risk.

To determine the materiality of the plans from a risk perspective, we screened each plan, using the following characteristics:

to capture plans with potentially high individual payouts, we reviewed all plans with a top payout of \$200,000 or more (using 2008 data);

to capture plans with potentially high leverage how much a particular incentive payout exceeds the median incentive payout or the median base salary we reviewed all plans with a median incentive payout greater than 100% of median base salary; and

to capture plans with a potentially significant overall impact to PNC, we reviewed the plans with the highest incentive compensation expense (those plans in the top 10% of all expense for all plans with at least one employee participant)

If a plan satisfied *at least one* of these criteria, we engaged in an additional review. This review included analysis under a specific, consistent framework to analyze important plan features. We looked at the potential financial impact to PNC of each plan, participant, and decision-maker, as well as the impact to PNC based on the operation and design of each plan. Some of the criteria included:

Plan Assessment Framework

Measuring Performance	Lower Potential Risk	Higher Potential Risk
Primary performance measure	Risk-adjusted	Top-line number (such as revenue)
Number of performance measures	Multiple, risk-weighted	Single, non-risk-weighted
Aligned w/ corporate performance	Yes	No
Linkage to corporate earnings	Low level linked to earnings	High level linked to earnings
Aligned w/ business performance	Yes	No
Determining Compensation	Lower Potential Risk	Higher Potential Risk
Specific source of funding	Yes	No
Method of funding	Formulaic	Discretionary
Payout range between 50th & 90th	1.0-2.5x	>4.0x
percentiles		
Cap on payouts	Yes	No
Calculation of payouts	Percentage of a specific goal	Commission/sharing rate
Steep compensation drop-offs	No significant cliffs	Significant cliffs
	C C	c .
Making Payouts	Lower Potential Risk	Higher Potential Risk
Timing of payouts	Payments in future years	Quarterly/monthly payments
Performance period	Multi-year	Less than a year
Management discretion	Allowed	Formulaic
Clawback mechanism	Yes	No

We also looked at how the design of each plan, the determination of payouts, and the ability to change plan features could impact PNC. We analyzed plan governance, which covered independent controls through design features, payout approvals, the tracking of disputes, exceptions, or adjustments, and the monitoring of plan decisions and information.

This additional review resulted in a subset of short-term incentive plans that could have a potential medium or high impact on PNC, from either a financial or plan design perspective. Our Risk Management group was actively engaged in this process and reviewed all of these plans in greater detail to identify any mitigating factors. Out of this subset, we identified four plans and either re-designed them, or added additional mitigating factors or processes, as appropriate. With respect to the legacy National City plans, we terminated some of them, transitioned others to legacy PNC plans, and modified the underlying governance structure. We decided to eliminate approximately 250 incentive plans from the legacy National City business.

As a result of this review, for certain plans remaining in place for 2009 and beyond, we drafted plan documents that included PNC-approved governance criteria, and instituted appropriate approval levels. We have documented, modified, or terminated various plans,

and expect to continue to do so as we continue the evaluation of incentive compensation plans throughout 2010.

Based on our approach to enterprise risk management and the comprehensive risk review of all of our incentive compensation plans, we believe that our senior executive officer compensation plans do not encourage our senior executive officers to take unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten our company s value, and that our employee compensation plans do not encourage the manipulation of our reported earnings to enhance the compensation of any our employees. We believe that the risks arising from our compensation plans, policies and practices are not reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on PNC.

0	1
9	h
-	v

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION TABLES

How to Read This Year s Summary Compensation Table

The Summary Compensation Table lists the base salaries, annual cash incentive awards, stock and option awards, changes in pension value, and certain other compensation.

In December 2009, the SEC approved new rules for reporting information to you in this table. We have recalculated the amounts for 2009, 2008, and 2007 in compliance with these new rules.

New Rule: Grant Date Fair Value

We now report the dollar value of all equity-based compensation as the **fair value as of the date of grant**. For a stock grant, we generally calculate this value by multiplying the number of shares granted by the closing price of PNC stock on the grant date. For an option award, we calculate this value using the Black-Scholes formula or a similar method.

Old Rule: Accounting Expense

Before this year, the SEC required us to report the equity value using our actual accounting expense. Accounting rules generally require us to spread out the expense over the multi-year vesting period. We would report the portion of our expense for an award in any given year, and the column in the table often combined the expense attributable to several awards over multiple years.

Impact on Total Compensation

Our Personnel and Compensation Committee made decisions in 2009 that significantly impacted how we report compensation in this table, particularly in light of the impact of this new reporting rule. As discussed in the CD&A, the Committee made some of these decisions in response to the TARP restrictions.

For incentive compensation based on 2008 and 2009 performance, these decisions resulted in almost all of the annual incentive compensation for both years being reported in 2009.

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

Early in 2009, the Committee decided to pay all or most of the annual incentive awards to the named executive officers for 2008 performance in restricted stock. Our normal practice had been to pay 75% of these awards in cash. A cash award for 2008 performance that we pay in 2009 is reported in 2008. A similar equity award for 2008 performance is reported in 2009. This distinction resulted in most of the annual incentive compensation we paid for 2008 performance which ordinarily would have been reported in 2008 being reported in 2009.

Had we paid 75% of the annual incentive awards for 2008 performance in cash instead of long-term restricted stock, total compensation would have been reported as follows:

	2008 Total	2009 Total
Named Executive		
Officer	(adjusted)	(adjusted)
James E. Rohr	\$14,498,352	\$15,777,856
Richard J. Johnson	\$2,932,373	\$3,385,626
William S. Demchak	\$7,854,652	\$11,601,835
Joseph C. Guyaux	\$5,561,847	\$6,263,168
Timothy G. Shack	\$4,267,467	\$4,388,869

For the 2009 performance year, the Committee also was not permitted to award any cash incentive compensation to our named executive officers. Instead, in late 2009, the Committee granted long-term restricted stock to them as permitted under the Interim TARP Rule.

Finally, the Interim TARP Rule will require each named executive officer to forfeit a portion of the stock or option grants made in early 2009. The Summary Compensation Table reflects 100% of the grant date fair value for these awards and does not account for any forfeitures, although they may significantly reduce the amount ultimately realized from the equity-based compensation shown in the Summary Compensation Table.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

				Stock	Option]	on-Equity Incentive Plan	&] Co	Change in Pension Value Nonqualified Deferred ompensation		ll Other	
Name & Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Awards (\$)	Awards (\$)	Co	mpensation (\$)		Earnings (\$)	Con	npensation (\$)	Total (\$)
	I cui	(a)	(¢) (b)	(¢) (c)	(¢) (d)		(¢) (e)		(¢) (f)		(¢) (g)	(Ψ)
James E. Rohr Chairman and Chief Executive Officer	2009 2008 2007	\$ 2,750,000 \$ 1,000,000 \$ 950,000	\$ \$ \$	\$ 8,061,442 \$ 3,475,319 \$ 6,308,199	\$ 3,811,008 \$ 4,131,180 \$ 4,516,824	\$ \$ \$	2,625,000	\$ \$ \$	3,225,975 3,409,755 4,166,770	\$ \$ \$	179,431 232,098 271,909	\$ 18,027,856 \$ 12,248,352 \$ 18,838,702
Richard J. Johnson Chief Financial Officer	2009 2008 2007	\$ 862,500 \$ 475,000 \$ 425,000	\$ \$ \$	\$ 2,011,323 \$ 762,361 \$ 837,185	\$ 897,552 \$ 1,003,140 \$ 536,360	\$ \$ \$	543,750	\$ \$ \$	96,413 79,680 84,044	\$ \$ \$	50,338 79,692 63,613	 \$ 3,918,126 \$ 2,399,873 \$ 2,489,952
William S. Demchak Senior Vice Chairman	2009 2008 2007	\$ 2,250,000 \$ 600,000 \$ 600,000	\$ \$ \$	\$ 8,414,699 \$ 4,440,376 \$ 3,699,538	\$ 1,612,944 \$ 1,614,410 \$ 1,532,395	\$ \$ \$	1,200,000	\$ \$ \$	188,163 149,737 159,474	\$ \$ \$	69,029 117,129 117,779	\$ 12,534,835 \$ 6,921,652 \$ 7,309,186
Joseph C. Guyaux President	2009 2008 2007	\$ 1,385,000 \$ 620,000 \$ 620,000	\$ \$ \$	\$ 3,217,316 \$ 1,460,431 \$ 1,680,708	\$ 1,649,376 \$ 1,682,240 \$ 1,311,414	\$ \$ \$	250,000 1,218,750	\$ \$ \$	697,111 732,423 868,043	\$ \$ \$	40,865 90,253 93,777	\$ 6,989,668 \$ 4,835,347 \$ 5,792,692
Timothy G. Shack Vice Chairman	2009 2008 2007	\$ 1,005,000 \$ 510,000 \$ 510,000	\$ \$ \$	\$ 1,975,431 \$ 1,530,985 \$ 1,300,146	\$ 1,191,216 \$ 1,052,610 \$ 968,113	\$ \$ \$	250,000 712,500	\$ \$ \$	492,547 494,924 623,297	\$ \$ \$	63,725 89,898 93,836	\$ 4,727,919 \$ 3,928,417 \$ 4,207,892

(a) These salaries include amounts paid in cash and amounts paid in stock units, as further described in the *Grants of Plan-Based Awards* table on pages 102-104. For each named executive officer, the breakdown of the salary paid in cash and the salary paid in stock units was:

	Cash	Stock Units
James E. Rohr	\$ 1,000,000	\$ 1,750,000
Richard J. Johnson	\$ 475,000	\$ 387,500
William S. Demchak	\$ 600,000	\$ 1,650,000
Joseph C. Guyaux	\$ 620,000	\$ 765,000
Timothy G. Shack	\$ 510,000	\$ 495,000

The 2008 salaries for James E. Rohr and Richard J. Johnson reflect an annualized base salary, although each executive officer received increases effective March 2008. The actual cash base salaries received in 2008 were as follows: James E. Rohr (\$992,308) and Richard J. Johnson (\$467,308).

The salary amounts also include amounts deferred by each officer under our ISP and SISP. We describe these plans on page 113. Please also see the *Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal 2009* table on page 115 for the aggregate SISP deferrals during 2009.

- (b) For 2007 2009, we did not pay any bonuses that are reportable under this column.
- (c) The dollar amounts in this column reflect the grant date fair value related to non-option stock awards. These amounts do not include any salary paid in stock units, which is included under Salary and described in footnote (a). The grant date fair values are all calculated in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation Stock Compensation (FASB ASC Topic 718). See Note 16 in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (10-K Note 16) for more information. In 2009, the stock awards consisted of: (1) an annual incentive award for 2008 performance payable in long-term restricted stock granted on February

Edgar Filing: PNC FINANCIAL SERVICES GROUP INC - Form DEF 14A

12, 2009; and (2) an award of long-term restricted stock granted on December 23, 2009, which was denominated in dollars on that date and issued as shares on January 25, 2010, the second business day after PNC publicly released its earnings for the full-year 2009. We accelerated the vesting of these restricted stock awards. Please see the CD&A at pages 73-74 for a discussion. For Mr. Demchak, the 2009 column also includes the value of his incentive performance unit opportunity grant on February 12, 2009, measured at the target number of units. Please see the CD&A at pages 79-81 for a discussion of this award. Please see the *Grants of Plan-Based Awards in 2009* table on pages 102-104 for more information regarding the stock grants we made in 2009, the *Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal Year-End* table on pages 105-110 for more information regarding options outstanding at December 31, 2009, and the *Option Exercises and Stock Vested in Fiscal 2009* table on page 111 for more information regarding stock vesting during 2009.

A portion of the stock awards granted in 2009 is subject to forfeiture under the Interim TARP Rule. This table does not reflect the impact of such forfeiture.

(d) The dollar amounts in this column reflect the grant date fair value for stock option grants. The grant date fair values are all calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See 10-K Note 16 for more information. In 2009, the option awards consisted of: (1) grant of stock options, exercisable over time, on February 12, 2009; and (2) a grant of stock options, exercisable upon the successful achievement of criteria related to the integration of National City, also granted on February 12, 2009. We eliminated the service-based forfeiture provisions for the time-based options in August 2009. Please see the CD&A at page

74 for a discussion. For Mr. Shack, please see the CD&A at page 81 for a discussion of other features of his grant. Please see the Grants of Plan-Based

Awards in 2009 table on pages 102-104 for more information regarding the option grants we made in 2009 and the *Outstanding Equity Awards at 2009 Fiscal* Year-End table on pages 105-110 for more information regarding options outstanding at December 31, 2009.

A portion of each option award granted in 2009 is subject to forfeiture under the Interim TARP Rule. This table does not reflect the impact of such forfeiture.

- (e) As described on page 97, our annual incentive awards have historically been paid in both cash and restricted stock. Under Item 402 of the SEC s Regulation S-K, any cash portion of our bonuses is included under the Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation column, while the grant date fair value of any restricted stock portion is included under the Stock Awards column. In 2009, certain of our named executive officers received their bonuses for 2008 performance entirely in restricted stock. We did not pay a cash bonus in 2010 to any of our named executive officers for 2009 performance due to restrictions under the Interim TARP Rule.
- (f) The dollar amounts in this column include the increase in the actuarial value of our Qualified Pension Plan, ERISA Excess Pension Plan and Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, as measured from the plan measurement date used for our 2008 audited financial statements to the plan measurement date used for our 2009 audited financial statements. The amounts include both (1) the increase in value due to an additional year of service, compensation increases and plan amendments (if any) and (2) the change in value attributable to interest.

We do not pay above-market or preferential earnings on any compensation that is deferred on a basis that is not tax-qualified, including such earnings on non-qualified defined contribution plans. For an additional explanation on how we calculate the earnings on our deferred compensation plans, please see the 2009 rates of return chart in the *Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation in Fiscal 2009* table on page 116.

(g) The amounts in this column include for all officers: (1) the dollar value of matching contributions made by us to the ISP and SISP; (2) the net premiums paid by us in connection with our Key Executive Equity Plan; and (3) the executive long-term disability premiums paid by us. Although we provided limited perquisites to named executive officers in 2009, each named executive officer has reimbursed PNC for the total value of any perquisites exceeding \$10,000. For an additional discussion of perquisites, please see our CD&A on pages 83-84. All amounts listed below are net of any reimbursement to us.

	Perquisites & Other Personal Benefits (\$)	Contr I Cor	egistrant ributions to Defined ntribution Plans (\$)		nsurance Premiums (\$)	Tax Reimbursements (\$)	Si Con	Fotal to ummary npensation Table
Name	(1)		(2)		(3)	(4)		(\$)
James E. Rohr	\$	\$	19,700	9	5 159,731	\$	\$	179,431
Richard J. Johnson	\$	\$	19,700	5	5 30,638	\$	\$	50,338
William S. Demchak	\$	\$	19,700	9	6 49,329	\$	\$	69,029
Joseph C. Guyaux	\$	\$	19,654	9	5 21,211	\$	\$	40,865
Timothy G. Shack	\$	\$	19,269	9	6 44,456	\$	\$	63,725

All Other Compensation

(1) PNC provides limited perquisites and requires its named executive officers to reimburse the company for any perquisites with an incremental cost exceeding \$10,000. See the CD&A at pages 83-84.

- (2) The dollar amount in the Registrant Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans column includes our matching contribution to the ISP for all five named executive officers Mr. Rohr, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Demchak each received a match of \$14,700. Mr. Guyaux received a match of \$14,654. Mr. Shack received a match of \$14,269. The dollar amount in this column also includes a \$5,000 matching contribution to the SISP for each named executive officer. PNC eliminated the SISP matching contribution effective January 1, 2010.
- (3) We pay premiums for most of our executive officers, including the named executive officers, in connection with our Key Executive Equity Plan, a split-dollar insurance arrangement. In addition, we pay long-term disability premiums on behalf of our named executive officers. The dollar amount in the Insurance Premiums column includes the 2009 net premiums we pay in connection with our Key Executive Equity Plan on behalf of James E. Rohr (\$147,534.76); Richard J. Johnson (\$20,400.05); William S. Demchak (\$40,534.18); Joseph C. Guyaux (\$9,669.94); and Timothy G. Shack (\$33,282.20). These net premiums represent the full dollar amounts we pay for both the term and non-term portions of this plan, after any officer contributions. The amounts also include the long-term disability premiums we pay on behalf of James E. Rohr (\$12,196.15); Richard J. Johnson (\$10,238.11); William S. Demchak (\$8,795.27); Joseph C. Guyaux (\$11,540.89); and Timothy G. Shack (\$11,173.52).
- (4) Our Personnel and Compensation Committee prohibits reimbursements for taxes in connection with perquisites and personal benefits.

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS IN 2009

			Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards (a)		Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards (b)			All Other Stock Awards: Number of	All Other Option Awards: Number of	Exercise or Base	Gra	ant Date ir Value	
Name		Grant Date	Thres- hold (\$)	Target (\$)		Thres- hold (#)	Target (#)	Maxi- mum (#)	Shares of Stock or Units (#) (c)	Securities Underlying Options (#) (d)	Price of	of and A	f Stock l Option wards (\$/Sh) (f)
James E. Rohr	Orthurst	E1 12 2000								200 400	¢ 21.07	ф 1	(02.000
	Options	February 12, 2009						-		290,400			
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009						_	30,173	400,000	\$ 51.07		937,475
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009							72,417				249,996
		December 23, 2009							90,242				873,970
	Salary Paid in Share Units								4,790				191,504
	Sulary I and in Share Chies	September 17, 2009							4,195				191,502
		October 1, 2009							4,133		_		191,482
		October 15, 2009							4,181				191,490
		October 29, 2009							3,662				191,486
		November 12, 2009							3,524				191,494
		November 25, 2009							3,367				191,481
		December 10, 2009							3,603				191,499
		December 24, 2009							3,522			\$	191,456
Richard J. Johnson													
	Options	February 12, 2009								72,600	\$ 31.07	\$	400,752
		February 12, 2009								90,000	\$ 31.07	\$	496,800
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009							7,141				221,871
		February 12, 2009							17,138				532,478
		December 23, 2009							23,273				256,975
	Salary Paid in Share Units			_			_		1,060		_	\$	42,379
		September 17, 2009		_			_		928		_	\$	42,363
		October 1, 2009							915			\$	42,392
		October 15, 2009						_	925			\$	42,365
		October 29, 2009					_		810			\$	42,355
		November 12, 2009					_		780			\$	42,385
		November 25, 2009				L			745			\$	42,368
		December 10, 2009							797			\$	42,361
		December 24, 2009							780			\$	42,401

			Pay Non-Ee	Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentiv Plan Awards (a)		Estimated Futu Payouts Under Equity Incentiv Plan Awards (b			All Other Stock Awards: Number	All Other Option Awards: Number	Exercise	Gra	unt Date
Name		Grant Date	Thres- hold (\$)	Target (\$)		Thres- hold (#)	Target (#)	Maxi- mum (#)	of Shares of Stock or Units (#)	of Securities Underlying Options (#)	or Base Price of Option Awards (\$ / Sh)	rai of and A	r value Stock Option wards \$/Sh)
William S. Demchak									(c)	(d)	(e)		(f)
	Options	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009									\$ 31.07 \$ 31.07		619,344 993,600
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009 December 23, 2009							12,512 30,028 75,782			\$ \$	388,748 932,970 092,986
	Salary Paid in Share Units								4,516 3,955			\$	180,550 180,546
		October 1, 2009 October 15, 2009							3,897 3,942			\$ \$	180,548 180,544
		October 29, 2009 November 12, 2009							3,453 3,322			\$	180,557 180,517
		November 25, 2009 December 10, 2009 December 24, 2009							3,175 3,397 3,321			\$	180,562 180,551 180,530
Joseph C. Guyaux	Performance Unit	February 12, 2009					96,556	193,112					999,995
Joseph C. Guyaux	Options	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009								,	\$ 31.07 \$ 31.07		655,776 993,600
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009							13,095 23,382			\$	406,862 726,479
	Salary Paid in Share Units	December 23, 2009 September 3, 2009 September 17, 2009							38,585 2,093 1,833			\$ 2,9 \$ \$	083,976 83,678 83,676
		October 1, 2009 October 1, 2009							1,806 1,827			\$ \$	83,672 83,677
		October 29, 2009 November 12, 2009							1,601 1,540			\$ \$	83,716 83,684
		November 25, 2009 December 10, 2009 December 24, 2009							1,472 1,575 1,540			\$ \$ \$	83,713 83,711 83,714

			Estimated Future Payouts Under Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards (a)		Estimated Future Payouts Under Equity Incentive Plan Awards (b)			All Other Stock Awards: Number of		Exercise or Base			
Name		Grant Date	Thres- hold (\$)	Target (\$)		Thres- hold (#)	Target (#)	Maxi- mum (#)	Shares of Stock or Units (#) (c)	Securities Underlying Options (#) (d)		and A	f Stock l Option wards \$/Sh) (f)
Timothy G. Shack		E.I. 10.0000								07 000	¢ 21.07		170 (1)
	Options	February 12, 2009									\$ 31.07		473,616
	Destricted Steels	February 12, 2009							7 900		\$ 31.07		717,600
	Restricted Stock	February 12, 2009 February 12, 2009							7,899 10,912				245,422 339,036
		December 23, 2009							25,754				390,974
	Salary Paid in Share Units	September 3, 2009							1,355			\$ 1, \$	54,173
	Salary raid in Share Cints	September 17, 2009							1,187			\$	54,187
		October 1, 2009							1,169			\$	54,160
		October 15, 2009		_					1,183			\$	54,181
		October 29, 2009							1,036			\$	54,172
		November 12, 2009							997			\$	54,177
		November 25, 2009							953			\$	54,197
		December 10, 2009							1,019			\$	54,160
		December 24, 2009							997			\$	54,197

- (a) From December 31, 2008 through February 10, 2010, PNC was a participant in the TARP Capital Purchase Program and subject to various compensation restrictions. Please see pages 69-70 of the CD&A for a more detailed discussion. As a result of these restrictions, PNC did not pay annual incentive awards to its named executive officers for 2009 performance.
- (b) The amounts listed in these columns relate solely to the special incentive performance unit granted in 2009 to William S. Demchak, as described in footnote (c) to the *Summary Compensation Table* on page 99. For a discussion of the terms, conditions and performance goals related to this incentive performance unit grant, please see pages 79-81. As there is no guaranteed minimum payout for this award, and the Personnel and Compensation Committee has the discretion to decrease any award otherwise payable, we have not included a Threshold amount in this column. The Target amount represents 100% of the grant and the Maximum amount represents 200% of that grant. For this grant, the performance period began on January 1, 2009 and will end on December 31, 2011.
- (c) For all named executive officers, this column includes the following: (1) the grant of restricted stock on February 12, 2009 as part of an annual incentive award based on 2008 performance; (2) the grant of long-term restricted stock granted on December 23, 2009; and (3) the portion of each named executive officer's base salary that was paid in stock units. The restricted stock grants on February 12, 2009 and December 23, 2009 are reflected in the Stock Awards

column of the *Summary Compensation Table* on page 99. The larger grant on February 12 reflects the value of the annual incentive award that has traditionally been paid in cash. The smaller February 12 grant reflects the traditional practice of awarding 25% of the value of the annual incentive award in restricted stock, which is then increased by an additional 25% to reflect lack of liquidity and the risk of forfeiture. The biweekly salary share unit grants are reflected in the Salary column of the manuary Compensation Table on page 99.

- (d) For all named executive officers, this column reflects the grants of options exercisable over time and the performance-based options tied to the successful integration of National City. Please see the CD&A at pages 76-77. We eliminated the service-based forfeiture provisions for the time-based options in August 2009. Please see the CD&A at page 74.
- (e) The exercise price for stock options is calculated using the closing sale price of our common stock on the grant date, as reported in The Wall Street Journal.
- (f) The grant date fair values for stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units and incentive performance units are all calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. See 10-K Note 16 for more information. The grant date fair value for stock options represents 100% of the Black-Scholes valuation. The grant date fair value for restricted stock or units represents the closing sale price for our common stock on the grant date. The grant date fair value for Mr. Demchak s incentive performance unit grant represents the closing sale price for our common stock on the grant date. All common stock prices are based on the reported prices in *The Wall Street Journal*.

OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2009 FISCAL YEAR-END

		Number of Securities Underlying	O Number of Securities Underlying	ption Awards Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Securities Underlying			Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have	Stock A Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Biobte	or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have
	Grant Date or	Unexercised	Unexercised	Unexercised			Not	Not	Not	Not
Name	Performance Period	Options (#) Exercisable	Options (#) Unexercisable	Unearned Options (#)	Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Vested (#)	Vested (\$)	Vested (#)	Vested (\$)
1 (00110	(a)	(b)	(b)	options (ii)	(4)	Empiration Date	(ii) (c)	(d)	(e)	(d)
James E.										
Rohr	January 4, 2001	210,000			\$ 74.59	January 4, 2011				
	February 21, 2001	16,810*			\$ 70.58	January 31, 2010				
	February 21, 2001	24,384*			\$ 70.58	January 6, 2010				
	January 3, 2002				\$ 57.10	January 3, 2012				
	January 7, 2002				\$ 60.65	January 6, 2010				
	January 8, 2004				\$ 53.90	January 3, 2013				
	February 18, 2004				\$ 56.94	February 16, 2010				
	January 25, 2005				\$ 53.50	January 25, 2015				
	April 29, 2005				\$ 53.03	January 3, 2013				
	October 24, 2005	,			\$ 58.65	February 16, 2010				
	January 23, 2006	,			\$ 65.45	January 23, 2016				
	November 17, 2006	,			\$ 69.38	January 3, 2013				
	January 25, 2007	135,666	67,834		\$ 72.65	January 25, 2017				
	February 14, 2007							3 \$ 828,433		
	February 14, 2007) \$ 1,742,070		
	May 17, 2007				\$ 74.65	January 6, 2014				
	January 22, 2008		161,334		\$ 57.21	January 22, 2018				
	February 14, 2008		250.000		¢ (2 (0/P	T 1 01 0010		7 \$ 919,971		
	July 21, 2008		350,000		\$ 63.69(f) \$ 21.07(f)	July 21, 2018				
	February 12, 2009		400,000		\$ 31.07(f)	February 12, 2019				
	February 12, 2009		290,400		\$ 31.07	February 12, 2019			4 700	¢ 050 07 1
	September 3, 2009									\$ 252,864
	September 17, 2009						Penha		4,195	\$ 221,454
	October 1, 2009						&nbs			